CEC

LEARMIR

HUADA TECHNOLOGY

China Electronics

Huada Technology Company Limited
PHEFEANKBTRLT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RESHBZMAT RN ERELFEREZFRAA)

(Stock Code B 171%.5%: 00085)




Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-year Financial Summary

RAEH
EERE
EEENWE DT
EEERRE
ESREREEASHE
EEERE
BYZLBE®RE
mEBEER
FAEREBRER
REMBIRR R
RERRBHR
FEREREBR
REMBRRME

IFEMBEREE

Contents

5 8

14
30
35
51
58
59
60
62
63
65

148

FEEFEANMKERQE 2019FFHK 1



Corporate Information

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Non-executive Directors

Dong Haoran (Chairman)
Liu Jinmei

Executive Directors

Yu Jian (Deputy Chairman)
Liu Hongzhou (Managing Director)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Kay Cheung
Qiu Hongsheng
Chow Chan Lum

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman)
Qiu Hongsheng
Chow Chan Lum

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Qiu Hongsheng (Chairman)
Chan Kay Cheung

Chow Chan Lum

Yu Jian

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ng Kui Kwan

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Room 3403, 34th Floor
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

BEEg
FHUTES

BEERTE)
RS

HITES

B 1% (B

BRI (2 FhaiE )
BYFHUTES
=

B A

BR S5 A
BEREEY
RIS (Z/F)

BB A&
IR

FHRREEZESES

BB A& (/E)
RE S
IR

R

RAMWE
h&s

AR ER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

a5

E {1

BB B 2655
EHKNE
34183403

2 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2019



INVESTOR RELATIONS

Telephone: (852) 2598 9088
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018
Website: www.cecht.com.cn
Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

STOCK CODE

00085

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China
Shanghai Branch Changning Sub-branch
Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Merchants Bank Shenzhen Branch
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd, Shenzhen Qianhai Branch

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISOR

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

Corporate Information

NEER

REEBERBS

=4 ¢ (852) 2598 9088

{55 : (852) 2598 9018

48 B www.cecht.com.cn
FH : investor@cecht.com.hk

R 424X 5%

00085
FEARERIT

PERERITRODARAR
EBREXTT
ERBITHROBER AR
FEERT(FB)BRAR
PERITRD AR A RDRF 1T
PEERBITROBRAF
BRRTERODBRIBRYDT
BERITRD BRQBRYIBATEDTT

R ETHRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

EERODBFETIE

BERAHER QA
BB
EFRKER183

& A L5418

B 3% AP

LK LRI B AT
EEER
EmEREESAT

HEEFEANKERIE 2019FFHK 3



Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dong Haoran & &
Chairman /&

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby report that for the year
2019 the Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) achieved a sale revenue of HK$1,695.5
million, at a level similar to that of last year, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company was
HK$155.2 million, representing an increase of 36.9%
when comparing with last year. Basic earnings per
share was HK7.64 cents.

RAANEBERRFPEEFEARBEAERAA (AR
ANEZSe([EFL])EM  2019F AR A RE
B AR ([AEE]) BERHESKWAIE95588
BT BEAFHEE  ARRRERENEFA155.2
BEBIL REF LEFA369% ERELREF A
7.647%1l ©
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The Board recommends the payment of a dividend
of HK2.3 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: HK2.0 cents), amounting to a
total dividend of HK$46.7 million. Subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the dividend will be distributed
on or before 31 July 2020.

In 2019, with the tremendous assistance from the
Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, China
Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"”) and through
its unsecured guarantee support, the Company
successfully raised RMB1.9 billion new unsecured
short-term bank borrowings to repay its existing
unsecured short-term bank borrowings.

As a leader of the security smart card chips industry
in the PRC, our products are mainly used in the
sector of identity authentication, financial payment,
government utilities as well as telecommunication. In
2019, the Group proactively opened up new markets,
including breakthroughs in the application of smart
transportation on highways and Internet of Vehicles, as
well as achieved efficient development in the area of
security chip product lines and solutions.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

BECEANEZ2019F12A31B ILFEIRNGE
f%2.37 1l (20184 : 2.0/1l) f& & « #5t 546.7
BEABL FARRBREREERRBFAS £
HER - BREFER2020F7HA31HH ZRI DK °

R2019%F - EARRZ ZEERBRRTEE =
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XHEN o IR E R ERT A\ BB AR R
EEARBE 1.0 THERMEHRTEEUE
EHERAEEEAMEHRTIES -

AEBELEBRANEERERLZENABZARE  E
MEZERRIMHER €8I BUFAKSE
¥REBEEE -200F A EEREHBFTOM
B AEERBARAMNERARMERAER L
FRRF - WELRE O EMGRERTRED
BRERER -
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Looking into 2020, the integrated circuits industry is
expected to see fiercer competition in both domestic
and international markets, with apparent trend
of increasing industry chain costs and downward
trend of product selling price further accelerating.
In the meantime, the COVID-19 pandemic will also
cast certain degree of uncertainty on the overall
macroeconomic environment in 2020. Nevertheless,
further application of the domestic-made substitutes
and the state cryptographic algorithm in certain sectors
of smart card chips market in 2020, as well as 5G and
Internet of Things becoming the key development
direction of new infrastructure, both of which will
push up demand for higher information security and
will bring market opportunities to the businesses
of the Group. The Group will continue to closely
track domestic market demands, actively explore
potential customers and strengthen sales channels
construction, follow up on the development needs of
telecommunication card chips for 5G application and
continue to expand the security chips market, with a
view to provide diversified and quality products that
meet the demand of the customers and markets.

On the other hand, based on its smart card chips
security and application technology accumulated over
the years, the Group will continue to pursue in-depth
researches on security technology and high reliability
technology, and with a market-orientated approach,
strengthen research on areas such as Internet of Things
system technology, security technology, smart card
chips technology, process technology, etc., and take
forward the development of products such as Internet
of Things security chips and system solutions, and
Internet of Things security operation and maintenance
platforms in a progressive manner, as well as
strengthen the applications for industries such as smart
cities, smart manufacturing, smart transportation, smart
home, automotive electronics, etc., continuously strive
to enhance its core competitiveness in the market of
Internet of Things.

RE2020F r AN ERERITERFEEAK
R EERIREHKAAENBLEE ERHEEE
B TRBZE—FTME - R FRTRRS
BB 2020 F BB LB BEIRIBEL BT R —ERR
FERREABA - AT © 2020F 4R B 5 & 2P
PEFERELCLERNBZE LN E—TER -
ARSGHYBMBHR ATEZNEREEFAH
EBREAEANLE2E R BRAREEMNEBER
THiER# AEEBEBEZRUBRATSE
Ko BBREZEREERFE  MAHEEREESR B
HSGERHEEREANERS R  BERRL
EURME  BORREHRARELAMIEH KA
ZlthEmREEMR -

S—hE AREKERZFREANTHZE2M
FEFR £l - A AR A 2 B AN = AT 52 1 R Al A
T UATISRER - REDEERGEMN - &
2R BRI TERMERANHAR - &
FHEMBRPLZ TR REARERTE DA
Z2ERTEFTERNRE  REINRESSH
e BERE BERXRE BERE AEET
FTENER  THRASEEEDBRBTH SN
LB FEN °
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Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
staff members for their contributions and efforts in the
past year. | would also like to express our most sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their continuing co-operation and support.

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

K& AABRREZTS YRR 2RBFACES
E-—FNFHTEEIES NRT AR -
WHERABRREEERHRANKN A ER R
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EEAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to HK$1,695.5 million, at a level
similar to that of last year. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$155.2 million,
representing an increase of 36.9% when comparing
with last year. The basic earnings per share was HK7.64
cents (2018: HK5.58 cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group’s integrated circuits design operation
comprises the design of security smart card chips and
the development of application system. Currently,
the Group’s products are mainly used in the sector of
identity authentication, financial payment, government
utilities and telecommunication. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group has obtained 31 new
patents, registered 1 new software copyright and 5
new integrated circuits layout designs.

Ko
E R

ANEBEB =2019F12A31BEFE 2 RA A
1,6955BE B BEAFHE - ARFRIHRRF
BEERMERNABISS2EEA T BEF LF
36.9% ° BFIREAZEF A7 6451 (20184 : 5.58
AL o

EREBRRIAER

AEBEZENERITEBRRESLRRLET
R RERRAEAE - B AEEERE
EBEH5MHA  2REN BINAREERE
EIEAEE - HE2019F12A31BIEFE - A&
BEFIEEEENIIE  TIELIERGZERT
FEMSIEE K B M ERET -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The year of 2019 saw many complex situations and
development in the international arenas, slowing down
the growth of global market for integrated circuits.
Meanwhile, the market demand for domestic-made
smart card chips grew steadily due to the further
application of the domestic-made substitutes and the
state cryptographic algorithm. In particular, as driven
by the maturity of domestic-made chip technology
and the policy on the issuance of bank cards with the
state cryptographic algorithm, the market demand
for domestic-made bank card chips soared. However,
product selling prices continued to drop as a result
of intensification of competition. In 2019, the
Group successfully participated in bank card projects
of various major domestic banks and recorded a
significant increase in sales volume of bank card chips
when comparing with last year. The market demand for
telecommunication card chips remained steady amid
fierce competition. Sales volume of telecommunication
card chips for the year increased when comparing
with last year. In 2019, the market demand for social
security cards was steady, sales volume of social
security card chips for the year increased slightly when
comparing with last year. During the year, sales volume
of identity authentication products was about the same
as last year, while sales volume of some of the other
smart card chips decreased significantly due to changes
in business planning. For the year ended 31 December
2019, overall sales volume of the Group increased by
10.0% when comparing with last year. As the recorded
growth in sales volume for the year was mainly
telecommunication card chips with unit price below
the weighted average selling price, and along with the
effect of decrease in selling price of smart card chips in
general when comparing with last year resulting from
further intensification of market price competition on
the revenue during the year, revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$1,695.5
million, at a level similar to that of last year.

BEEFNWNE DN

20019F IR 2B MEZE 2 REKRER TS
BEME  BESRRGATSEBEELCERM
ERmELNE— SRR FXRTBER - Hep -

%%!Euﬁ&mm&ﬁ&Mﬁl*“iiﬂF
M%Fﬁﬁﬁ@ HESRENRmEERIER

CBEMEBRFENE  EHEREEERFE
T% 2009F AEBE NS EE KBRIEITH
BITREE 2RO HEHEEREAFHEREN
R-BEROAFMEBERRFEE  BHRFIFEE
BE - FABERCREEEREFAMER -
2019F HHERERMHHFRKFEE  FALGRE
FTOHAFHEERATFHRALR - FRFMHHAE
MIHEEREAFHE  Mea THMATEREAE
¥BHEE L BRHEEEREFTHEEETR -
BHZE2019F12A31HIEFE AEBBHEEER
EFHEET100% AR FARAEEENFEED
TEZEAREBRNIMEFHEENEERTH - M
ERMBSERRFE P NBERERERSHD
EEREFLE TREFARANEE  ~A&E
B E2019F12A318 L FEMWA AE1,6955H
BET BEAFHEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

The Group has successfully conducted research of and
promoted the use of different types of raw materials,
which has both mitigated the problem of shortage of
raw materials and achieved cost reduction to a certain
extent, and offset the negative impact of decrease in
selling price of smart card chips when comparing with
last year caused by intense market competition on the
overall gross profit margin of the year. Overall gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2019
was 31.6%, at a level similar to that of last year.

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$83.2 million (2018:
HK$90.3 million). The percentage of selling and
marketing costs to revenue decreased to 4.9% from
5.4% of last year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the continuous implementation by the Group of
stringent cost control measures during the year.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$345.8 million (2018:
HK$343.6 million). The percentage of administrative
expenses to revenue was 20.4%, at a level similar to
that of last year. The Group continued to implement
stringent cost control measures during the year.

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to HK$221.7 million
(2018: HK$211.8 million). The percentage of research
and development costs to revenue was 13.1% (2018:
12.6%). Research and development of the Group
during the year primarily focused on the research
and development of security chip products as well as
the continuous improvements in smart card product
functions and performance, advanced research of new
process, enhancement of product security certification
level, enhancement of product security technology,
research in application of security chips in the Internet
of Things sector and the development of application
systems and solutions, etc.

AR AL E K FHE TR R MR AR 5T A E 6
B BERTEMEZHREE  btE—TFTREE L
B TAARBRZE - W T B TSR AR
ILEHERE RO NEEREFTF THREFARE
EFETEKNBETZE - #{E2019F12H31H
HFENERBENERAE31.6%  HEFHEE -

HE2019F 12 A3V HIEFERHEERTHH#EREK
RAE83.2AEBEBIT (20184 : 90.3E BB L) - 4
ERTISHER AR ANB DA EFHS5.4%
ThEZE49% c THRMNETEZEREAZFRNAREEEE
B B A B R AN AR I FE A o

HE2019F12A31H EFEMITHF Y A345.8
BEBIT (20185 : 343.6AEETT) - THHAX
WA E D A20.4% @ BEFHRE - FRRX
& B BB T e BRSO PR AR Il FE e o

HZE2019F 12831 H It FE 2T RBEKANE
221,788 %8 (2018F : 211.8EE B L) - K
NMHAEBERAMGWANET DL A13.1% (20184 -
126%) - FAREBNHAELRFAZEZAER
ZECREMNARERFAEZENS L RERDE R
MENBERA  FIENEN  ERTERE
ERNER  ERLTEHMNES - ERRYE
MESNLZE2TRHRARERRFMEB RS R
HFEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other income

Government grants recognised as income decreased
by 29.9% to HK$10.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 resulted from less government
subsidies received for research and development costs
incurred in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised a gain on disposal of a building in the PRC
of HK$9.1 million following the termination of the
agreement to purchase Block C of China Electronics
Information Security Technology Research and
Development Foundation in the PRC.

Share of result of an associate

China Electronics Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited (“CEOVU"), an associate of the Group with
its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, is principally engaged in the development
of theme industrial parks in the PRC and related
businesses. The Group’s share of result from CEOVU
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$120.2
million (2018: HK$126.0 million).

Taxation

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to HK$2.8 million (2018: income tax
expense of HK$27.7 million). The income tax credit in
current year was mainly due to a decrease of current
taxation and deferred taxation of HK$15.0 million
for the withholding tax on distributed profits and
undistributed profits from a subsidiary in the PRC when
comparing with last year and derecognition of deferred
tax assets of HK$11.2 million for previous year’s tax
losses in 2018.

BEEFNWNE DN

HA A

AR AREEREZ2019F12 A31H IEFEEB AR
REFBEKNNES ZBRF/MERY  FAREER
BUAZ BT/ TF29.9% 21028 8B TT °

HZE2019F12A31AEFE - ARIEBEURF
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@k AEBEREE —RURFRAEFR
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B —HEBEQRER

FEXRABAIERER AR ([REXA]) A&
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BERMEEER AEBEEZE2019F12A83181EF
EREFEARZEER12028 8571 (2018
F1260088EBT) °

B IE

HE2019F12A3MB L FEMBHIER A22.88
B8 (20185 : FIEHAX R27.7EEHET) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources, and
bank and other borrowings. At 31 December 2019,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$350.2 million, of which 97.0% was denominated in
Renminbi, 2.3% in United States dollars, 0.7% in Hong
Kong dollars (2018: HK$375.5 million, of which 90.2%
was denominated in Renminbi, 8.0% in Hong Kong
dollars and 1.8% in United States dollars).

At 31 December 2019, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of HK$2,188.0 million, all were
denominated in Renminbi (2018: HK$2,295.3 million,
of which 97.5% were denominated in Renminbi and
2.5% in Hong Kong dollars). Among these borrowings,
(iy all were unsecured (2018: HK$57.5 million were
secured by deposits of the Group and HK$2,237.8
million were unsecured), and (ii) all were borrowed
at fixed interest rate (2018: HK$2,237.8 million and
HK$57.5 million were borrowed at fixed and variable
interest rates respectively). At 31 December 2019,
committed borrowing facilities available to the Group
but not drawn amounted to HK$881.3 million.

The Group’s revenue are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and payments are denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group will make use of
hedging contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the
risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its
operations.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$814.5 million (2018: HK$1,167.9
million). The gearing ratio, which is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity and net debt of the Group,
was 40.3% (2018: 48.5%).

MBERRABES

AEBRBERBASIERMBETREMEERR

BEBEBESMENR - N2019F12A31H » K&EH
%ﬁiﬁi&iﬁfﬂ Y AE350288E T HAlA
97.0% LA AR ~ 2.3% A E 7T 50.7% A 7 JT 15
B(0184F : 37558 BB L* 2 Al BE90.2% A A
R¥ - 8.0%ABITRI8%AETIAR) °

2019128318 AEEBMRIT R EMEER
72,188.0B 8B L 2EUARMKEEE (2018
F:22953HEEBTL DAIAEITS%AARE R
25%ABTTETE) c ZEBETF() 28 AEKE
(20184 : BES7TSAEBTIIANRE lZﬁ K AE
WA &2,237.8BEBTAEERA)  R(i)2EMA
BEFEEE (2018F : AH2,237.8B88 LKk
575 BB O RNEEMNEREFBFIRER) -
20195128318 * NEBEARB A 2 E&AEE
BB ARSI 3EEBTT

AEBPWATEUARBEEMNTAARE KR
BILEH o $‘§IAHALH~;7T|JFH£/EP:|%’U%ﬁiﬁiﬂ}ﬁ
SR PN E

R2019F 128318 - AKEB RBEBEFEAR
814 5B &E/B7T (20184 : 1,167.9B&8EL) - &
AEELE(UAEENEE FERIAERRLE
N EREEETE) 540.3% (20184 : 48.5%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2019, the Group did not pledge any
assets as collateral for its borrowings (2018: certain
assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$62.8 million were pledged as collateral for
borrowings of the Group).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2018: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately
370 employees, the majority of whom were based in
the PRC. Employee benefit expenses for the year were
HK$161.0 million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre
and competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy
and performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration
policies are largely in line with industry practices,
and are formulated on the basis of performance and
experience and will be reviewed regularly. Bonuses and
other merit payments are linked with the performance
of the Group and of the individuals as incentive to
optimise performance.

BEENWE DN

EERH

MR2019% 128310 » AEBWEAHEEEEFET
A EE (20184 : NEEBRMZ(E62.88 88T
NETEECEAAEBEENETR) -

EXAERHEERE

R2019F12A310 ' AEERBERTEENRE
FWEETBEMEKNHKRETZEARFRLE (2018
) o 20195128318 » 2N & B I {7
EARBEBE(2018F : &)

1B 8 &% B BUR

R2019F12A318 » AEBERA Y3705 EE -
AEBORPBERNBIIE- FREERANEI A
161.0B8/ETT °

AEEBRINEFAT MEBRREENEEE - A
BEBRENHEBRREL TIERRFMEAE - RE
H B R B X A E BIABARS - iR R T
YRR B BRI ET I T B VR AR AT » TEAT R EAtb
REDVEFAEBLERNRERREMETE - A&
BEEEM&ZERR -

FEETEANEAERAR 20195FH 13



Corporate Governance Report
LEERRE

The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising
its accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated
to exercise corporate governance through regular
reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2019. The following summarises the
corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2019, the Board consists of two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The roles
of the chairman of the Board are segregated from
the managing director. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the
Group. The managing director is delegated with
the authority and responsibility for managing the
Group’'s business, and the implementation of the
Group’s strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2019, the position of the chairman of the Board and
the managing director were not held by the same
individual. As at 31 December 2019, the position
of the chairman of the Board and the managing
director were held separately by Mr. Dong Haoran
and Mr. Liu Hongzhou, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).

ARABHEBEFKFHEEERER  LH
TEME B BY BEEMAFIE - AR
ARERTERER 2EEBHERIMER
REESH LR (T ETREND) ME14prE 2 &
BRI (TRERERTA) BT RAN
HH

KABREZE2019F12A31HIEFEAH D BT
EWRBIME14FE 2 B EERTRIARBEASTA
&3 e T AR RAMEEERER -

BEEg

R2019F12A31H EECHMERATESE -
MEHFNTEEN BB IUINTESHEHK - B
FEeTFUREEHKELREPES DN TER
I - EFEEIFAEEBVEREESMNEE -
UNEAREBARBER ESHCEERETSH
EASEEBZEEREEAEEMNEE - L=
BERKCLEIZ - REZE2019F12A31HIEFE
N EEeXTRKESHCENBAYREH—
ARIBEFHE - A2019F 128310 - EF€THER
ESRCENBMD R B ESEA T ERBILIME
EET - ZEBEMNE DA MNEEE T K
Ef -EE(BRESSTIRRESHLE)ZH
WEEEGH B REIEMERBE -
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All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration
of the directors are determined with reference to their
duties, responsibilities, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long
term business objectives, strategies and plans, and
to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations
and implementation of business objectives are
delegated to the managing director. The management
is delegated with the necessary authority to carry out
daily operations and duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors
to fill any vacancy on the Board. The Company’s board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) sets out
the approach to achieve diversity within the Board.
Appointment of directors will be based on merit that
complements and expands the skills and experience
of the Board, and after due regard to factors which
include but is not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, and professional experience
towards achieving diversity within the Board. During
the year, the Board has reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Board
considered that diversity within the Board has been
achieved as the Board is composed of director from a
diverse range of background.
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An analysis of the composition of the Board at 2019512 A3TEMEST G EHEAKSTAT ¢
31 December 2019 is set out in the following chart:

100%
Above 70 years old (14%
Executive TOBREAE (14%) Integrated circuit industry
director (29%) ?xperience (29%)
80% g}g;i;o? No (43%) 61-70 years old (14%) L8 B L XA
= (43%) 61-708% (14%)
Company executive
(14%)
LEH
60% e e rector 29%) (14%)
;\; (seuio; 51-60 years old (42%) Corporate finance (14%)
51-607% (42%) DERE (14%)
40%
p Accounting (29%)
Independent Yes (57%) @5t (29%)
none/?cuu\ey B (57% =8 ‘
20% "
41-50 years old (30%)
Banking and
fir 14
0%
Gender Designation Connections with the Age group Expertise
MR B4 parent company FH4ER R
RS /NS IE0)E 2L
During the year, Mr. Yu Jian was appointed by the FR LHFHRRZRZESHER  ERILEESE
Board as a director to fill a causal vacancy upon EELEAREFNEMEIE 2B ZER o BT
recommendation of the remuneration and nomination ERTEGEMEER A ke T EEERE
committee. Mr. Yu Jian is a Certified Public Accountant WHENMEELR FHWRREZESNESE
in the PRC with extensive knowledge and experience RE - REgttrsy qu&imﬂn WERES H A
in accounting and finance. The remuneration and EEMNER  BEPREREZTEXNENZ T -

nomination committee and the Board were of the
view that Mr. Yu lJian's expertise in the accounting
and finance sector, alongside with the other directors’
expertises, would contribute towards achieving diversity
within the Board.
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All directors have actively participated in the review
and monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board
meets regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between
scheduled meetings, the senior management of the
Group provides information to the Board on a regular
basis regarding the activities and development in
the businesses of the Group. The directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. With respect to regular meetings
of the Board, the directors will be given written notice
of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors will be given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. If a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting. Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the matter should be present at that Board
meeting. All minutes of Board and Board committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company for record with sufficient details of the
matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or Board committee(s), including any concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed by any director.
These minutes are available for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
The attendance record of the directors at the general
meeting(s), Board and Board committee meetings held
in 2019 are set out on page 29 of this annual report.
Besides providing sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, all directors have disclosed to the
Company the number and nature of the offices held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and updated the Company
on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance on directors’ liabilities are in
force to protect the directors from their risk exposure
arising from the business of the Group.

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

EEFHRB2ERFSMERARARERK -EX
EEHEHEE  EBFARELTR -RNEH
GEHE AEENSAEEESRAEEER
MEBRERTHRNESTGRHEN - EFAJE
REDASENEMNLAIEEENERTZRKE
VEXRER BRAAXARARXMN RAHTHE
eeEMs EFSELRITORESER
SRBHLESHNT PR= i% SEFeEE
LrEX-pEMMEZzmME £ ERYER
BRT  BEESR %%$KE%L%% FES
HESELMEENSTETFAESTERREK
MAMEER AREFEBUNBRTEEEZS =
TRERE - HBEERTAGRERTHEAY
BBEANGEM B IFNTEERZLEEHEN
EXZ2e3 - ARARAINERETESTSNE
EZEENERLE  ZTeRLREYESS
SEFLZEEMEREFTHIERNREFRHF
MM EPEZERESFRANTMEEX
RENRHER HEEFNEFHLEERA
AR ERBEHEEEMNAENKERSE
Bl - RSEEM2019F BT 2RRAE EFEK
EEZBegR i FERBEHINNAFRE29
B - BRIERBEN RS HE LB NIAREARE
BHEBI MEEFHECAARREEERE
AR AFSHABMEERE BB REE - AR
Emiﬁ%ﬁ W M RARBFEEEFMERZ
BE  REBFREREECEZREBEAEURE
ARREFAAREXBELEZER

HEEFEANKERAR 2019FFw% 17



Corporate Governance Report
S ,'_quiﬁ_d:

The directors acknowledge the need to continue
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
for making contributions to the Company. The
participation by individual directors in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in 2019 is set out in the
table below.

EEMRATERERRLFT AT MNE KRG
ARARRELER - TRBMIITEFTN2019F
RENEELTRARET AR BERBEZ
FEZERRAE Z2HETE -

Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/

updates programmes

B & SHEIR
EERTE B 2
EHEN WHEE EDH

Non-executive directors FHTES
Dong Haoran EER

Liu Jinmei E|ES !
Executive directors HITES
Yu Jian* B

Liu Hongzhou 24T M
Jiang Juncheng** e
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITEE
Chan Kay Cheung PRAE S

Qiu Hongsheng ER kA
Chow Chan Lum IR

v 4
v 4
v 4
4 4
v

4 4
v 4
4 4

*  Appointed in March 2019.
**  Resigned in March 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the company
secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant training.

*  RO019F3IHEZL (T -
** D019 3 FFEF o

REE2019F12A318HIEFE » KRR QA AME
HEHEEELR T DRI/ NRERIEEEII -
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the
directors’ securities transactions. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum,
and an executive director Mr. Yu Jian. Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng is the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration and nomination committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and the
senior management, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives,
determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive director
and senior management, making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, identifying and making recommendation to
the Board on possible appointees as directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of directors, succession
planning for directors and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive directors.
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The Company’s nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as director of the Company. A
summary of the nomination criteria of the Nomination
Policy is set out below:

(1) ability to contribute to the effective carrying out
by the Board of its responsibilities;

(2)  effect on the Board’s composition and diversity
in all its aspects, which includes but is not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

(3) independence of the candidate; and
(4) commitment to devote sufficient time.

The Board will review the Nomination Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of directors, the
remuneration and nomination committee will give
due regard to nomination criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy. During the year, when considering
Mr. Yu Jian’s nomination and appointment, the
remuneration and nomination committee has applied
the above mentioned criteria and procedures.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held four meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are
set out on page 29 of this annual report. The work
performed by the remuneration and nomination
committee during the year included reviewing the
remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management, assessing
performance of the executive directors, determining
the remuneration of the executive directors, reviewing
the policy for the nomination of directors, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

ARRERABE (IREBR]) SN EERA
AEFREANZEXEFTZERARADER
LR - RABRREZEABEZINDOT

(1) EHBHEZRSHAEMETEAML:

2) HEFESHERLIKEZTILZTE:
BEETRRER - Fik - XUERBEE
2 UARBELER

3) EFEREANBIME: &
4) BAFTERREE AR -

EEg TR IEABRENEREITZAR

EHEFTeMEARNREENRE SR EXE
PREEERIEZRN  FTWERREZEELER
DEBRABRABMELEL - FR - EEE
EREENREREZARK THRIERZES
FER Lt R AR e

FA FTHRRBZEEERITINGHE -8R
BERZFTERLNFECHRCEIINANERF298
NeFHERERZEENFAZTHEEERIE
EREREEAB ZHMBR RHM - FFEAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HK$nil
up to HK$1,000,000, from HK$1,000,001 up
to HK$1,500,000 and from HK$1,500,001 up to
HK$2,000,000 were one, two and one respectively.
Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out on pages 145 to
146 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung,
Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr.
Chan Kay Cheung is the chairman of the audit
committee. The members have extensive experience in
financial matters. The terms of reference of the audit
committee, which described its authority and duties,
is available on the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
website of the Company (www.cecht.com.cn).

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, oversees and
conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and ensures the external auditor are
independent and the effectiveness of the audit process.
The audit committee examines all matters relating
to the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group, auditing functions, internal controls, risk
management and financial reporting. External auditor
and the directors are invited to attend the committee
meetings as and when necessary. The audit committee
meets at least twice a year with the external auditor.
The audit committee also serves as a channel of
communication between the Board and the external
auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two
meetings. The attendance record of the committee
members at these meetings are set out on page 29 of
this annual report. The work performed by the audit
committee during the year included reviewing the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018, the unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and the audit
plan and approach of the external auditor, monitoring
the progress and results of the audit regularly and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s audit department is responsible for
carrying out analysis and independent appraisal on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The tasks of
the department include:

o reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities and
internal controls;

o comprehensive audits of the practices, procedures,
expenditure and internal controls of all business
and support units and subsidiaries on a regular
basis; and

e  special reviews of areas of concern identified by
the management or the audit committee.

The audit department reports directly to the audit
committee and has direct access to the Board through
the chairman of the audit committee. The audit
department may directly report to the audit committee
without consulting the management.

The audit department issued reports to senior
management covering various operational and
financial units of the Group. The audit department
also conducted reviews of major projects and contracts
as well as areas of concern, if any, identified by the
management.

Concerns which have been reported by the audit
department were monitored regularly by the
management and by the audit committee until
corrective measures have been implemented.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out below:
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20194
HK$'000
FET
Audit services EZ R 2,548
Non-audit services (included tax matters, IEEZRYE (BREMEEIE
review and other reporting services) E0 R H M R HmARTE) -
2,548
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT EERIE:T

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement
from the auditor about its responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 51 to 57 of this annual report. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Board had selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, had made
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems,
including reviewing their effectiveness annually. The
audit committee is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility to oversee independently the Group's
financial, risk management and internal control systems
and reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems
annually.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
financial and accounting records, ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and identifying
and managing the key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance. As the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, they can only be expected to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, while
the audit committee oversees the actions of the
management and review the effectiveness of the
systems that have been put in place. Systems and
procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on major types of risk the Group
encounters. Operational units are responsible for
identifying the potential risks, and analysing and
evaluating the significance of such risks. Operational
units also assess the adequacy of existing controls
and implement treatment plans to mitigate such risks
and report the view of risks and proposal for the
enhancement of the existing systems and procedures
regularly to the audit committee, and ultimately to the
Board on major findings. The audit committee reviews
the existing risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and makes appropriate
enhancement when necessary, with a view to improve
the effectiveness of such systems.

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited, an
independent advisory firm, to conduct an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019. The scope of review included the
internal control systems of the Group at the entity
level, as well as key business processes of its principal
subsidiary, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd,
covering key controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls of the Group. The review
results have been reported to the audit committee and
the Board. The Board is satisfied that these systems
were effective and adequate throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019. In this regard, to enhance
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Group has begun to
implement the recommendations put forward by Tricor
Services Limited.
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The audit committee has also held discussion with
the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards.

The Board has reviewed and ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Board is responsible for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Company
has established and implemented procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Group. These
procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review
on a regular basis with reference to the Listing Rules,
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in accordance
with established procedures.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
registered shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the
Company to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such special general
meeting shall be held within two months from the date
of deposit of such requisition.

Corporate Governance Report
TRERBE

BENZEQCBAKENINEZBENEITH
REEEEHFLRERE —AEFRFNABEEE
A R ENRER RIFE -

ExgchR ABRARARES  ANEZR
MGERBETENER BTEENER A
RETHEINBIRIERBEHERER B

EZ2RERERBEMARTEE - AAREHIE
LERREREMABBEZRER  NEMER
SR B AELFHEAKE 2 &HBER - ZF1E
FREMERSZE ETRA - &BxRBAE KD
RIBEC BIEIRFETTE MR -

R R A
BREREBHARRENREZEF

BEARR AR ERZRMER R A REI981FRANE
(#1E5]) EMREEEXHEFEERELAR
AIREASGEEZARNABEHRATNLR+5H2
—(10%) 2 B IRR - B RERER BUR A2 B FE 9%
E R 0 #b ik AClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * [AIEE &8 AN 7
NAMEBRNERER  EXEEZSARARER
AIRENREZERNEEZAMER - Mz
RERASEREBE2EZ KA HEMEARNE
1T

HEEFEARNKERAR 2019FF3% 25



Corporate Governance Report
S lﬁq\Aiﬁﬂ:

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the written
requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a special general meeting, but any special general
meeting so convened shall be held within three months
from the date of deposit of such requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), either any number of the registered
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or
not less than 100 registered shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.
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The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and
regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition; and where an annual general meeting is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the registered shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’'s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director
at the general meeting must validly serve (1) his/her
written notice of intention to propose a candidate
for election as a director at the general meeting; (2)
a written notice signed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the
nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to
the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the website of
the Company. There was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’'s attendance at general
meetings, Board and Board committee meetings held in
2019 are set out in the table below:
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2R HELH

TEBISEEN2019FNLERRAR &S

ehEFZREBEERIHE

Meetings attended/held

HERE/ 8ERR
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee Rk General
Note Board** E# o meetings
k3 Exzgw ZE®g ZEg RRAE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Dong Haoran EEN 6/7* 11*
Liu Jinmei 2515 6/6 0/1
Executive directors HTES
Yu Jian & 1 4/4 33 17
Liu Hongzhou 2IETM 6/6 17N
Jiang Juncheng ZEK 2 12 0/1 0/0
Independent non-executive directors BIFGTES
Chan Kay Cheung BRiEE 717 22 4/4 17
Qiu Hongsheng ilpeides 717 22 4/4* 1/1
Chow Chan Lum FEMm 717 22 4/4 17
& Chairman & *E

** Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board
met with independent non-executive directors without other
directors and management present.

Notes:

1. Appointed in March 2019.
2. Resigned in March 2019.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Haoran, aged 55, is the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Dong graduated from Tsinghua University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Semiconductor Devices
and Physics, and is a professor level senior engineer.
Mr. Dong is the chairman of Huada Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd (“Huada Semiconductor”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company, the chairman of GTA Semiconductor
Co., Ltd, the chairman of Shanghai Belling Corp., Ltd
(“Shanghai Belling”) (a company with its shares listing
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and an executive
director of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited. Mr. Dong joined CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”)
in 1988 and was the executive director of Huada
Electronics. Mr. Dong possesses extensive knowledge
and experience in the integrated circuit design industry.
Mr. Dong was appointed as a director of the Company
in February 2015.

Ms. Liu Jinmei, aged 50. Ms. Liu graduated from Jilin
University and holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Chinese
Language and obtained a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from Beijing Institute of Technology.
Ms. Liu is the deputy general manageress of Huada
Semiconductor, a director of Shanghai Belling (a
company with its shares listing on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) and a director of GTA Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd. Ms. Liu was the marketing strategy manageress
of BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd and the marketing
manageress of China Huaxu Golden Card Co., Ltd.
Ms. Liu joined Huada Electronics in 2005 as the
marketing manageress of Huada Electronics and was
in charge of marketing for a number of years. Ms. Liu
was appointed as a director of the Company in January
2018.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu lJian, aged 44, is the Deputy Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
and a Master’s degree in Economics from East China
Normal University, and is a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC. Mr. Yu is the chief accountant of Huada
Semiconductor, a member of the supervisory committee
of GTA Semiconductor Co., Ltd, a member of the
supervisory committee of Advanced Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corporation Limited, the chairman
of the supervisory committee of Shanghai Belling
(@ company with its shares listing on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and a director of Solomon Systech
(International) Limited (a company with its shares
listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). Mr. Yu was
the assistant financial controller of Shanghai Guojia
Industrial Co., Ltd, the assistant general manager
and the finance manager of Shanghai Datang Mobile
Communications Equipment Co., Ltd and the financial
controller and the deputy general manager of Shanghai
Pudong Software Park Co., Ltd. Mr. Yu was appointed
as a director of the Company in March 2019.

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 57, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Business and Administration,
and is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much
of his career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director
of the Asset Management Department of CEC, an
executive director and the deputy general manager
of Winfair Development Limited, a divisional director
of the Treasury Division of the Investment Banking
Department of CEC, the deputy general manager
of China Electronics Technology Development
Corporation, the deputy general manager of the Asset
Management Department of CEC, the deputy general
manager of the Company, a director of the General
Office of CEC, a director of Shenzhen SED Industry
Co., Ltd (a company with its shares listing on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and the managing director
of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu
was appointed as a director of the Company in October
2013.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 73. Mr. Chan is the vice
chairman of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited.
Mr. Chan was an executive director and the deputy
chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited.
Mr. Chan joined The Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965
and possesses extensive knowledge and experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member of
the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a member
of The China Unionpay International Advisory Group.
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company
Limited, Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited
and SOCAM Development Limited (all being companies
with their shares listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange). Mr. Chan ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings
Limited, previously a listed company in Hong Kong,
upon its privatisation in January 2020. Mr. Chan was
appointed as a director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 55. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree in
Management Science and Systems Engineering, and is
a Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, an International
Certified Senior Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified
M&A Dealmaker in the PRC, a senior economist and a
fund management intermediary. Mr. Qiu is an executive
director and the general manager of China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd and a
visiting professor of Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics. Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute
of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China as
an economic analyst for a number of years. Mr. Qiu
joined China Consultants of Advisory and Finance
Management Co., Ltd, a company directly managed
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, in 1994 and
focuses on management consulting and corporation
restructuring transactions. Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth
of professional knowledge and practical experiences in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, strategic
integration, meticulous management, etc. Mr. Qiu
is also an independent director of China National
Software & Service Co., Ltd, AVIC Heavy Machinery
Co., Ltd and GRINM Advanced Materials Co., Ltd
(all being companies with their shares listing on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and an independent
non-executive director of CEOVU (a company with
its shares listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Mr. Qiu was appointed as a director of the Company in
November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 69. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in 1974,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in China Law by the University of Macau in
1987. Mr. Chow has been a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1979 and
is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is a member of the
Foreign Experts Consultative Committee on China
Independent Auditing Standards of the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC. Mr. Chow served on a number of
committees of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, including as the deputy chairman
of the Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee,
and a member of the Investigation Panel and the
Professional Standards Monitoring Committee and
as president of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Chow serves as an honorary advisor and committee
member of various social bodies, and has been a
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangdong Province, the PRC from
1997 to 2012. Mr. Chow is also an independent
non-executive director of Maoye International Holdings
Limited, and has been an independent non-executive
director of China Aerospace International Holdings
Limited from 2000 to 2012 and Pak Tak International
Limited from 2002 to 2014 (all being Hong Kong Main
Board listed companies). Mr. Chow was awarded the
Medal of Honor by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC in 2013 and
the Honorary Fellowship of the Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts in October 2017. Mr. Chow was
appointed as a director of the Company in June 2015.
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EENREREEAEHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Qiuju, aged 53, is the financial controller
of the Company. Ms. Wang graduated from the
School of Economics of Xiamen University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Finance and is a senior
accountant. Ms. Wang is a director of CEOVU (a
company with its shares listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange). Ms. Wang was head of the Finance
Department of Shenzhen SED Electronics Corp., head of
the Finance Department, financial controller and chief
accountant of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd
and the general manager of the Finance Department of
China Electronics International Information Service Co.,
Ltd. Ms. Wang joined the Company in March 2015.

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 58, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accounting from the University of Liverpool,
United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has many years of experience in
auditing, finance and administration. Mr. Ng joined the
Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group is the design and sale
of integrated circuit chips. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 58 of
this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK2.3 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: HK2.0 cents), amounting to a total
dividend of HK$46,687,000. The dividend is subject to
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2019, the issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 24 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
62 of this annual report and Note 33 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$306,742,000 (2018:
HK$413,259,000).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company implements a dividend policy which
aims to provide a stable dividend to shareholders.
The Company will take into account, among others,
the following factors when forming the proposals for
dividend distribution:

(a) the financial performance of the Group; and

(b)  the future funding requirements of the Group.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 148 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and
analysis of its performance for the year and the
outlook of its businesses are set out in the section
headed”Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 13 and on
pages 4 to 7 of this annual report, respectively. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this report.

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including
the relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Board believes that the employees
are one of the Group’s most important assets. The
Company will strive to ensure that the remuneration
level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remuneration
of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Being people-oriented, the Group
ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also
continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, and
occupational health and safety.
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In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a
long-term and stable relationship with the Group’s
customers and suppliers for the continuous success and
growth of the Group’s businesses. The Group has an
extensive sales network across the PRC and to manage
such network requires a close working relationship with
our customers directly and through distributors, agents
and other business partners. The Group will continue
to strengthen its customer service to provide superior
quality service to the users, and strive to achieve the
fastest response time and highest customer satisfaction
levels in the industry. The Group’s continuous effort
to build trust and strengthen mutually beneficial
cooperation with its customers and suppliers has
facilitated to foster long-term cooperation relationships
with them.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group’s revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC, the results and performance of
the Group’s businesses depend on the growth of the
information technology sector in the PRC, particularly
the electronic information technology sector. Although
the information technology sector is demonstrating a
growing trend in the past which is in part supported by
favourable government policies, any negative trend in
the information technology sector or other restrictive
policies may materially and adversely affect the
business, financial condition and results of operation of
the Group.

The PRC integrated circuit market is highly competitive
with relatively short product cycles, and is subject
to policies of the government. The Group’s results
of operation substantially depend on the successful
execution of its business strategy and development
plan to maintain its leading position in the design of
integrated circuit chips industry in the PRC. The Group
may face challenges in implementing its business
strategies, and its ability to achieve its goals may be
adversely affected by various factors, some of which
are beyond its control. If the Group is not able to
execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation
may be materially and adversely affected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICY

As a leader in the design of integrated circuit chips
industry in the PRC, the Group is committed to
operating its business in an environmentally-friendly
manner. Although most of the Group’s businesses
are not subject to any environmental protection rules
and restrictions, the Board believes that operating
the Group’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and requirements, the Group
offers periodical trainings to its key personnel. As a
result of the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe
and environmentally-friendly operation for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is preparing a Corporate Social
Responsibility Report with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules which will
be published separately on the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn) and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkex.com.hk)
within three months after the publication of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of a business and
attaches considerable importance to it. Furthermore,
as the shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company is
also subject to the rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"). To the best knowledge of the Board,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Dong Haoran (Chairman)
Liu Jinmei

Executive Directors

Yu Jian (Deputy Chairman)
(appointed as director and Deputy Chairman on
5 March 2019)

Liu Hongzhou (Managing Director)

Jiang Juncheng
(resigned on 5 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng
Chow Chan Lum

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Chow Chan Lum and Mr. Dong Haoran
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has entered into a service contract
with each of the directors of the Company containing
terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, and observation
of the bye-laws of the Company. The directors of the
Company will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2019, Mr. Dong Haoran, a non-executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board,
was interested in 4,672,420 shares of the Company (long
position) (representing 0.23% of the issued share capital
of the Company), and Ms. Liu Jinmei, a non-executive
director of the Company, was interested in 197,250
shares of the Company (long position) (representing
0.01% of the issued share capital of the Company). Save
as disclosed herein, none of the directors nor the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year had the Company or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

In January 2019, the agreement for the purchase
of Block C of China Electronics Information Security
Technology Research and Development Foundation in
the PRC (the "Property”) by Huada Electronics from
China Information Security Research Institute Co.,
Ltd (“CIS Research Institute”) and its supplemental
agreement (collectively, the “Transfer Agreement”)
were terminated in accordance with its terms and
conditions. Huada Electronics received a refund of
RMB258.4 million in January 2019 from CIS Research
Institute and relinquished its right to use the Property
and its right to earn a profit from the Property to CIS
Research Institute. The Group recognised a gain on
disposal of a building in the PRC of HK$9.1 million
following the termination of the Transfer Agreement.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

After the financial year, the outbreak of the COVID-19
has been declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization. If the COVID-19 outbreak remains for
a prolonged period of time, it may create negative
impacts on the Group's performance. At the date
of this report, given the rapid development of the
COVID-19 outbreak, the Board considers that it is
impracticable to estimate the financial impact to the
Group. The Board will continue to assess the impact
of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s operation
and financial performance, closely monitor the Group’s
exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection
with the COVID-19 outbreak, and maintain close
communication with different stakeholders of the
Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain of the related party transactions as disclosed
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
also fall under the definition of “continuing connected

R EMRAMTERE - &35 875 3R R MY 232 P7 5%
BENETHBALIRSZTERNFERERS - %
iﬁ?i%i’JEL—rtmiﬁ | FB14ABPIE 2 MR E ©

transactions” within the meaning of the Listing AHTRERXHAMT £TARAIN AR K FEEH
Rules. These transactions have complied with the RE - BEFBEHRAOT
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of certain of these transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules are summarised as
follows:
Transaction
amount
in 2019
#2019
RELHE
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction XZ 85 st TR
Sale of products to the CEC Group APEETFEBEREARHEEER i, ii(a) 166,875
Purchase from the CEC Group and AR EEFEERS QA RE i, ii(b) 161,116
provision of services by the CEC Group RHBEEFEEKE QT
P ER A B9 AR 7%
Property management fee paid to the CEC MAPREFEEKE AR N i, i 7,373
Group MEERE
Rental received from the CEC Group APEEFEERE QA WIRES i iv 2,434
Rental paid to the CEC Group APEETFEERE A A NHEE i v 18,102
Fees and commissions for financial services MR BEE TEBK 8 QA i 54
paid to the CEC Group MBREcFEERAS
Notes: HaE -
(i) China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC”, together with its (i) PREFELEXESEERAR(TREFEE] @ &

(if)

42

subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

On 25 April 2018, the Company entered into a business
services agreement (the “2018 Business Services Agreement”)
with CEC to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and their respective proposed caps
of the transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021. Pursuant to the 2018
Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides products
processing, testing and assembling services to the Group, while
the Group purchases raw materials, modules, software and
equipment from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC
Group.

The 2018 Business Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 28 June 2018,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 8 June 2018.

(a) Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and
smart cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.

REMBARATEEFEEKEAA]) REAREZE
RRER - TRRIE ERARAR ZBHEAL -

(i)  M2018F4A25H ' A AR HEFPBHE FEET LA R
Htrag (2018452 & R ez ) - LA E2018F7A1H
ﬂoﬂ%ﬂ;sOElﬁ%ﬁFﬁZ@‘* SFERER 5 2GR
MEZSBETRZE% LR - BIF201848 46 RS %
FEETFEEKEARRAANEEREEERINT - @A
AREHERY  mMASEEEFRAETEERES R AREE
EME - BE - RERRENRFEETEERE QA
SHEEM °

20184 ARG e X 1EEE EIRE BB AR AIBIRE
fﬁézms%ﬂzsaéﬁiﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁtﬁt/ﬁ - B RAR
BEEHR BHAE2018FE6 A8H 2 BHA

(a) FVF'Ia?%I/ﬂZ,\A HEERE
TREEREBEAMGH

T SR A BR

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2019



(iii)

(iv)

(b) Raw materials, modules, software and equipment
purchased from the CEC Group are for the Group's
research and development of integrated circuit cards,
smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to
the Group.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC Rida Property
Management Co., Ltd (“CEC Rida”), a subsidiary of CEC,
entered into a master property management agreement (the
"2018 Master Property Management Agreement”) pursuant
to which CEC Rida and its subsidiaries shall from time to time
provide property management services to the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending
on 31 December 2020. The transactions contemplated under
the 2018 Master Property Management Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Details
of the 2018 Master Property Management Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2018 First Master Lease
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group shall from time to
time lease properties located within the PRC and owned by the
Group to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020. The
transactions contemplated under the 2018 First Master Lease
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of the 2018 First Master Lease Agreement
and the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2018 Second Master Lease
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group shall from time
to time rent properties located within the PRC and owned
by the CEC Group from the CEC Group for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31
December 2020. The transactions contemplated under the
2018 Second Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the 2018
Second Master Lease Agreement and the related caps are
set out in the announcement dated 19 December 2017. The
Company has subsequently revised the annual cap amounts of
rental payable by the Group to the CEC Group under the 2018
Second Master Lease Agreement. Details of the revised caps are
set out in the announcement dated 9 January 2019. In 2019,
the Group adopted Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
16 “Leases” (“HKFRS16"”) which sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases. Under HKFRS16, for transactions relating to leases
with a term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value asset
contemplated under the 2018 Second Master Lease Agreement,
lease payments were disclosed as rental paid to the CEC Group
in the above table. Such transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company. For transactions
relating to leases with terms ranging from more than one year
to three years contemplated under the 2018 Second Master
Lease Agreement, the Group recognised HK$3,723,000 as
acquisition of right-of-use assets during 2019. Such acquisition
of right-of-use assets constituted one-off connected transaction
for the Company.

(iii)

(iv)
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On 25 April 2018, the Company entered into a
financial services agreement (the “2018 Financial
Services Agreement”) with China Electronics Financial
Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance”), a subsidiary of CEC,
to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and their respective proposed
caps of the transactions thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021.
Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement,
the financial services provided by CEC Finance to the
Group includes deposit services, financial assistance and
fee-based and commission-based financial services.

The 2018 Financial Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 28 June 2018, details of which are set out in the
circular dated 8 June 2018.

Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, the
maximum daily balance of deposits (together with the
interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB820 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) with CEC Finance on any
given day during the year ended 31 December 2019
had not exceeded such amount. For the provision of
financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall
not exceed RMB820 million on any given day and the
actual balance of financial assistance provided by CEC
Finance on any given day during the year ended 31
December 2019 had not exceeded such amount.

Save as disclosed above, all of the related party
transactions as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or constitute fully exempt connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.
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The above continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor
of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the
Board that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that these continuing connected
transactions:

o have not been approved by the Board,

° were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve the provision of goods or
services by the Group;

° were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

o have exceeded the cap as disclosed in the
announcements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:

EERBFRE 2ER

RAFEEARBERAREBY  TNIARBES
AR D15 AN B 5 B 1 kA R K B

BB R 2 W

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity

Name of director Name of entity of the entity ESREHER

Yt BEEEH BERZIEXK ZESEME

Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) Design and manufacture Deputy chairman

EEA ERN¥EBE (MiET1) of integrated circuits BEER

ERERRE MEE
CEC Chitsing Technology Investment holdings Director
Co., Ltd (Note 1) BEER S

REETRTARAT (M)

Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman
BB BE W) of integrated circuits EER

SRERRE R EE
Yu Jian Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman of the
ER =3 E A0 ) of integrated circuits  supervisory committee
EXERRT L EGE (Note 2)
E=RMZ2)
Jiang Juncheng Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman of the
ZHK BB EHE) of integrated circuits  supervisory committee
S E R MR (Note 3)
EERMZ3)
Liu Jinmei Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director
251 BB BEHE) of integrated circuits BF

P EBE RAT M BE

Notes: Htat -

(1) CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. (1) STEREFEBAANGZBEEBRBE - "RETEE
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information A—REBEHEIREERNERAEEHOE - HENT
technology conglomerate. These companies are subsidiaries ARRETEECHBARSBL AT MESEHBEA
or associates of CEC and engaging in, or have subsidiaries or FSBA AT AN RN EE LR TSRS
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses B EREE  ERTRMABERS -
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

(2)  Appointed in April 2019. (2)  H2019F4RERE -

(3) Resigned in April 2019.

201994 A BHE -
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The above mentioned competing businesses are
operated and managed by independent management
and administration. The Board exercises independent
judgment and is always acting for the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2019, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had notified the
Company that they had an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company:

Report of the Directors

EEERE

T 7 BRFEBEORBILETIEREMITHA S EE
NEI - BB EITEIFH T HE RAKRRD R & EHK
RZE %ﬂf”% Al > REBFRIEAFE

EPBIYN PR FER 2 AL ERG T -
BEERREZZRE

R2019F12A318 » IRIBFF L HAEKHIF336
BEARRNRBEEEFEZELMIR  THAL( AR
ﬁ%%i BT AEBBRIN BEMERAD A HE
ﬁﬁ$@75¥ﬁk¢6%juL2%ﬁ:

4 >

Number of
shares held or

attributable Percentage

EBEREN of shareholding

Name of interested party BERZERR gk g=| BRBESL

China Electronics Corporation  China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company

Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)])
Huada Semiconductor (Notel) ZERFEEE(fH1aF1) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
CEC (Note 2) PEEFEER (Ai22) 1,206,180,000 59.42%

Notes:

(1) Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI).
Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed to be
interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company held by
CEC (BVI).

(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
Board regards CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2019, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

(1)  FEARFEEFFHCEC BVI)Z100%M#E - RIEE 5 &

E1&BI - zéﬁﬂé;’%'é“%&%ﬁ?%%ﬁ&c (BVNETIEE Z AR
7]812,500,000f% f% 15 2 #E %5 °

i

EES
|

'
A% 1D
S22

o
+H+

#:EHEZmO%HxﬁE BIEFES
EEWE A EERNFEEMRS
ﬁ EFERTHETERE (RE
©E)BRRRZERIERDF -

i &

+.
=

=

pii

Bt B
BN 22
+t
Em N
o)
BN E
mﬁ[ﬂﬂ{

7

PG LT 2 s /SRR RN 2R -

B ESIREESN - 2019128318 » AQF0
REMeETMEMALTIEEARRG D KIERE
RO BEZENIBEZS REBE K FE336/KEE
FrERMAZESZIAER -
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION
ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

In October 2019, the Company entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with a bank for a
loan in the amount of RMB490,000,000 (the “Loan”)
for a period of 12 months commencing from the date
of the drawdown of the Loan. Pursuant to the terms
of the Loan Agreement, it will constitute an event of
default if CEC ceases to maintain and own not less
than 51% of the beneficial shareholding interest (direct
or indirect) of the Company. If an event of default
under the Loan Agreement has occurred, the bank
may declare the Loan together with all interest accrued
thereon and all amounts outstanding thereunder to be
immediately due and payable. Details of the Loan and
the Loan Agreement are set out in the announcement
dated 25 October 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for 69% of the Group’s sales
for the year and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for 22% of the Group's
sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 87%
of the Group's purchases for the year and purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 42% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC Group is not
a beneficial owner of the five largest customers and is
the beneficial owner of one of the five largest suppliers
of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the best knowledge of the Board owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.

ERBRRZIEEBITEE
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 or
subsisted at 31 December 2019.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme
of the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 35 to the
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this report, the Company has undertaken
and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s businesses
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2019.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Board, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital are held by the
public and fulfills the requirement under the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Report of the Directors
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EEERE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 will be audited by Ernst
& Young who will hold the office of auditor of the
Company until the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On 28 June 2018, the term of office of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as auditor of the Company expired. On the same day,
the shareholders resolved to appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company. Details of the change of
auditor are set out in the announcement dated 26
March 2018.

Upon recommendation of the audit committee, the
Board resolved to recommend the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company
to fill the vacancy following the expiration of the
current term of office of Ernst & Young and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company. Such appointment is subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Details of the
proposed appointment of auditor are set out in the
announcement dated 30 March 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ELECTRONICS
HUADA TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman lIslands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 58 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % B A =R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRER

BHPERBEEESAMAGRM Z(BEEENE
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Key audit matter

FRARESSEE

Revenue Recognition

WA &SR

Revenue from the sale of integrated circuit products
is recognized at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the products. Some of the sales
contract terms, including quality inspection period
and warranty provision, generate complexity and
judgment in determining the timing of revenue
recognition.
HEEKEBREMNBRAREERHEER TERH
B RE R — RO RN E M4 o BT WA
REFEER - MOHESVGR (BREEREH LR
BIRRR) W KA R N HIEr -

The Group’s disclosures about revenue recognition
are included in note 2, 4 and 5 to the financial
statements.
EEEAMRAERNREH NP ERRMT2 - 4%
5 o

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) on trade

ESERSBNRAEERR (RAGEERR) RE

The gross balance of trade receivables as at 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$582,364,000
(excluding notes receivable amounted to HK$
145,541,000), against which allowance for expected
credit losses amounting to HK$71,016,000 was
made. The collectability of trade receivables is
a key element of the Group’'s working capital
management, which is managed on an ongoing basis
by management.

MR2019F12A31R B RBREBAERA
582,364,000/ 7T (F fE YL R 4%145,541,000/& 7T) °
U ER R EE BB R A 571,016,0008 T - B
SREBRIENAINEMERE EEBEZEESETENE
Exx IRAEEBRHERRE -

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % B A =R

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ZARENTSEHEETPROMAELH A

We performed walkthroughs to understand the
design of the revenue recognition process. We tested
the controls which the management has established
in recording sales and revenue recognition.

BB EE TREERRTRABRNBIE - KD A
ABIEEBECHEEE R AR FIE 8 BT -

We have, on a sample basis, reviewed sales contracts
to ensure that the revenue recognition policy applied
by the Group follows the HKFRS requirements. More
specifically we reviewed how the quality inspection
period were considered within the revenue
recognition process. We also reviewed the amounts
of goods returned during the year.
BMEMEEMHEESN  BR SXREMANKA
RERBRBEMBHRELENHTE - FAEM
BAEEHNERAERBETEGEREEREH -
BAMEBEFANREEYMHNRIE -

Our other audit procedures included, amongst
others, obtaining confirmations, performing sales
cutoff test, and testing revenue transactions around
the year.

HAWEMEARFEE (Ah k) BEER - #17
HEBRAAREBREFEANNBAR ZETRH -

receivables

We tested the Group’s processes and controls
relating to the monitoring of trade receivables and
review of credit risks of customers.

HA2AE EXEEARESRZEZIRUFERERR
FREERBMNER REZEFER -

We obtained the provision matrix and reviewed the
Group’s historical observed default rates through the
analyses of ageing of receivables.

BB ESRERER - WiE AN EKFIEN RS
B EEENELERENEX-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ET RS

Key audit matter

FRARESEE

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables. The assessment of the
correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs requires
significant management judgment, which in turn
impacts the recoverability of the Group’s receivables.
EEEERBEGERGEEIRKFIENTEREERS
B HELEREAR  BAKLERLLEREEES
BRNERETNTEFTETEBITEE ARG - #
mEE SREEKFIELRYE ML -

The Group's disclosures about provision for ECL
are included in note 2, 4 and 20 to the financial
statements, which specifically explain the key
estimation the management used in the assessment.
EEEAMEREEEERBENRESH N BmKMT
24520 EBHAERENFTEPAANERME -

Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

54

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ZRRENBEEETROMES®N

We also evaluated management’'s assessments of
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment with public available
information.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
50.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % B A =R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

56

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
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fEwm o MIRBFTERNERE  BER
BHEAEESENERLEBHEANEE ML -
EmAEEERYE BEEENKELERNE
EBEARE - IRBMIRSFEERTHEE

- BEBEERBMBRETREEAET
ERAMBRRTOEENE & REE
BAHNEELR  ARMEEEXRIFEREE

R BN EREERZBE RS B AR
SEBREERE - A - RIRFHEKIENAT6E

By EEETREFERLE -

o TEGAVBMROERYIHRTX LB
AR BIEFE  WREETHEHRRER S
BERBMZXSFEE -
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % B A =R

e I BERBERNERAXBEHNVKEERE
BAREENENRE URBEHEEWB
BERBEXRER - RMEBERE SKREF|NT
Fﬂ{‘ EBEMAT - RMA/FAERAERE
BiE-

BREMEBRN  RAREXZE BB T A

FNBRFHE BRELRHELBEABAEREST

ilﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ'ﬁW%IH@%H%TEW%
R BE o

BHMERERZEQEXEH  SHARMZET
BRBYMMEEERENR  YRMFIERE A
EREMKARSXERMBILENE BEEM
HiFRREEBRER( 2@ ) -

ftHRBEZZEBBMNERD  RMAEERLS
HHEAGANBERR CBEARASEE - AME
X RE S At IR o TP AR BIED R S L
FHCRIFERBRIERTIATARBRBEE LS
B FERRELOBERLT MREGEBHER
PIRERBBRFHEN I TRIERBB AR
@ RPREFNEERETBBZER -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

14 May 2020

HEARNB I ZBENRE 2 EFHE AR ASKE
BFELE -

ZXKEENE AT
HEDAD
EBPRIR

NE B
F{ERE221E

—E-EFRATMA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— = 372
meBmRk
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FET FHETT
Revenue WA 5 1,695,486 1,686,996
Cost of sales fizR=PD W 7 (1,158,987) (1,156,265)
Gross profit ER 536,499 530,731
Other income Ha A 6 34,910 32,855
Selling and marketing costs HE LT ISHEK AR 7 (83,154) (90,268)
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (345,756) (343,646)
Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 K& H b f& U 5k 18
receivables R (B B 1B 20 (7,402) (20,240)
Operating profit KRR 135,097 109,432
Finance income BE WA 9 2,074 5,614
Finance costs A& B A 9 (103,381) (97,610)
Finance costs — net BB A - FRE 9 (101,307) (91,996)
Share of results of associates iR/ 18 121,000 126,651
Share of result of a joint venture B —FH& & RRIES - 228
Profit before taxation B 6 A0 % R 154,790 144,315
Taxation THIE 10 2,796 (27,725)
Profit for the year KEERF 157,586 116,590
Profit for the year attributable to: AFERFEER :
Owners of the Company AARERFESE 155,159 113,321
Non-controlling interests FET IR = 2,427 3,269
157,586 116,590
Dividend B’E 11 46,687 40,597
HK cents HK cents
7B eIl
Basic earnings per share BREXEF 12 7.64 5.58
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mERHEBER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEFEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year REEBF 157,586 116,590
Other comprehensive income for AEEHRHEERDN
the year, net of taxation: Ht2mEUE :
ltems that will not be subsequently TEHREIEEET
reclassified to profit or loss: HEERIER -
Share of an associate’s revaluation JEAS — MR E QAR
gains on properties e R - 5,853
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified B geENBERT
to profit or loss: HEEWIER ¢
Exchange differences on translation of BREMBHREAN
financial statements PE W =% (44,670) (162,274)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ2HEWKFHELE 112,916 (39,831)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAFE2HKNHZAE
attributable to: EERN:
Owners of the Company RAARERFAESE 111,649 (42,233)
Non-controlling interests T IR M 2 1,267 2,402
112,916 (39,831)

FEETEANKERAA 20195FHK 59



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR &

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
2019128310 2018%F12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt TR FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN G 13 63,153 367,599
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 52,908 -
Investment properties REME 15 48,291 48,847
Land use rights 3 fF A A 16 = 11,302
Intangible assets B EE 17 1,961 2,059
Investment in associates REEE RRIRE 18 2,707,889 2,665,777
Deferred tax assets RERTBEE 10 42,120 38,024
2,916,322 3,133,608
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "E 19 460,613 603,679
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N E e W z0E 20 713,585 722,947
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABREREE
profit or loss 21 14,142 42,029
Short-term deposits MEER 22 450,994 91,303
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREeEEY 23 350,219 375,525
1,989,553 1,835,483
Total assets EEHAE 4,905,875 4,969,091
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

S A L
e BRI R
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019128318 2018%12A31H
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Het FHET FHET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners EARREBEEEEN
of the Company &
Share capital and premium B& AN K 5 (B 24 825,454 825,454
Reserves i (750,876) (707,366)
Retained earnings R BB 1,962,131 1,804,305
2,036,709 1,922,393
Non-controlling interests FERES 20,057 18,790
Total equity A 2,056,766 1,941,183
Liabilities afs
Non-current liabilities E(RBERE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 25 32,180 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 10 12,923 24,511
45,103 24,511
Current liabilities REBaE
Deferred government grants EEBT B 26 43,667 44,083
Contract liabilities EHEE 6,363 13,377
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e 5B 27 537,474 638,480
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 28 2,187,988 2,295,297
Lease liabilities HEEGE 25 21,670 -
Income tax payable e P15 T 5018 6,844 12,160
2,804,006 3,003,397
Total liabilities BEHAE 2,849,109 3,027,908
Total equity and liabilities EEZREEAE 4,905,875 4,969,091

The financial statements on pages 58 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2020 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Dong Haoran E% &

Director %

HNEFESEZFAIE 2 UHBRELEZTe R
20203 H30R AL EREBETIEE - WAH T AL

RREEF -

Liu Hongzhou 4T M

Director %

HEEFEARNKEERAE 2019FFHK 61



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KhAREREARE
Property Non-

Share Share Surplus  Translation  revaluation Merger Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earmings Total interests equity
e BARE BRER EifE NEEGER Elic( ] At REE 88 FERER E&4E
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note (3))

W) (i)

At 1 January 2018 01851818 20,299 805,155 37,705 135,182 B3 (13,121) {415 1,751,880 2025522 16,388 2,041,910
Total comprefiensive income 2ikELE - - - (161407) 5,853 - - 1330 (42.233) 240 (39.831)
Payment of dividend ke - - - - - - - (60,8%) (60,8%) - (60,8%)
At 31 December 2018 H2018%128318 20,299 805,155 37,705 (26,225 28,9% (13,121) a,115) 1,804,305 1922393 18790 1,941,183
At 31 December 2018, as previously reported H2018E12831A (AN ES) 20,299 805,155 31,705 (26,225) 28,9% (143,121) (715 1,804,305 1922393 18,790 1941183
Effact of adoption of HKFRS16 FaERERRSENS 60T - - - - - - - 43264 43264 - 43264
At1 January 2019, as restated H201951418 (E5) 20,299 805,155 37,705 (26,225) 28,9% (13.127) (7M5) 1,847,569 1,965,657 18,790 1.984,447
Total comprefiensive income 2EhRLE - - - (#3,510) - - - 155,159 111,649 1,267 112,916
Payment of dividend EHRE - - - - - - - (40,597) (40,597) - (40,597)
At 31 December 2019 20195123318 20,299 805,155 37,705 (69,735) 28,996 (143,121) (@ms) 192,131 2,036,709 20,057 2,056,766
(@)  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (@) WBEAETEDEFIREN  AATRPERZHEATL

portion of the profits of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries has
been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve

fund (the “surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.

MOGNCHBERAEIRNCEERESRFERESD
(TEHBEEDA -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2019 2018
20195 20184
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ht it FET FHET
Cash flows from operating RETH2HERE
activities
Cash flows generated from KeEtzHane
operations 29 221,793 8,642
Interest paid A E (101,326) (101,569)
Income tax paid SN (14,617) (24,299)
Net cash flows generated from/ rEEeELE(FTA)
(used in) operating activities ZHREREFR 105,850 (117,226)
Cash flows from investing REZBHZRERE
activities
Interest received U BRI B 10,151 6,151
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  BEK&FE -
equipment, and intangible assets MEEEE (18,407) (10,349)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEE®WH*  BEK
plant and equipment BB FTISRIE 276,031 1,748
Proceeds from disposal of land use  J& & - i {F A HEFTIS KB
rights 11,253 -
Payment for financial assets at fair XNRBRAREFAER
value through profit or loss EREENRE (62,500) (541,115)
Proceeds from disposal of financial  HEZE AR EFAEZE
assets at fair value through TEREEMSHRIEAE
profit or loss 92,632 708,086
Increase in short-term deposits EHIFE R 2 1 (359,691) (80,303)
Dividends received WER B B 63,760 51,000
Proceeds from disposal of HE—FEE % RRMFHRIE
a joint venture - 6,839
Net cash flows generated from REFZBELEZHS
investing activities 2 F R 13,229 142,057

HEEFEARNKERAT 2019FF8% 63



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from financing METHZ2RERE
activities
Proceeds from bank and RIT R EMEE TSR
other borrowings 2,380,682 2,329,347
Repayment of bank and BERITRAMEE
other borrowings (2,438,795) (2,239,025)
Dividend paid B 8. (40,597) (60,896)
Principal portion of lease payments MENFEEEH (20,364) -
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from MEEE(FTA) EEZ
financing activities BeEme#5 (119,074) 29,426
Net increase in cash ReRBESEEYIEM
and cash equivalents HEE 5 54,257
Effect of exchange rate changes EXREH) T & (25,311) (52,563)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNzHeRREeEEY
beginning of the year 375,525 373,831
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEEREASEEY
end of the year 350,219 375,525
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the "Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which
is established in the People’'s Republic of China (the
"PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are the design
and sale of integrated circuit chips.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1. — & #

PEHEFEARMBEBERAA(TARRA] &—
FRFAESEHEAMAY  TREREHELE
WERBEEAR - ARAIRNEBBEHERS
FTERAR LT ANA R &M EEMAU A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARBZBERERARATHEETFEREXEH
BRAR([FEEFEED (—HKRPEARK
ME ([HE )KLz B3 °

R AERAIN KRR BRERIAB TR

2. EXRSHHEBE

REAGAMBRRAEAN T Z S BRET
MmN BRAAERAN HEFEBRR -—BERERAR
FIEE2MIFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with HKFRSs, HKASs,
Interpretations and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the
first time of all the new or amended HKFRSs and
HKASs, and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are
relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2019. Except
as disclosed below, the adoptions of these new or
amended standards and interpretations had no material
effect on the results and financial position of the Group
and/or disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

2. EXRSTHERRBEGE)

2.1 REEE

(a) e BEBNBEHEER  BEEER
a2BR_LEmAEA

BAMBREDNBEESSHMASEM AT
EEANERYBEREEN (BT HEREE
Al BESHER([HESHER ) k2Em
RE - ZEREVBRENETEAHMERH
BRARFHFLETHA (T EMRA]) REBRAA]
OB 2 BARERT SEVMBREIEE
PRAERERE YRR EMERETRAA
B ABHERMEE BALEVER) NEMREMmME
HIEET o

RETABBYBBREED - BEGER KRR
BOGAMBHRRAERE THRRGHEHE -F
BEEEERASENGHHREBETTATER
FIET - ARG AMBEHERT 508 R EH B RE
MUNER IPREEEBOBRILGE &
By E4h IR -

(b) FATER ~ ERIERT R 2 FE

REBRAFEEERNRNE BRI ASAHE
M BHEASBEEBKERENR2019F1H18
a2 st BRERZ ] BRI 2 BBV
HREERFMBBSTER - Rk - BUATA@
SN CERNZEF R SSE R 2 BRI KR B
SEZEBERTBEARRL SRR GRS PRI
BIEBETEEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS16 “Leases”

In the current year, the Group has adopted HKFRS16
“lLeases”. HKFRS16 sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The Group has applied HKFRS16
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the retained earnings at
1 January 2019, and the comparative information of
the consolidated financial statements continues to be
reported under the accounting policies and disclosure
requirements prevailing prior to 1 January 2019.

Under HKFRS16, a contract is, or contains a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Upon adoption of HKFRS16, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
those leases previously classified as operating leases,
except for leases with terms of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets.
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
less any lease incentives received. Lease liabilities are
initially measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate of the lessee. Subsequently, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments. For short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2. EXSHEBRRBEGE)

21 HRUEE(E)

(b) FETER - EAEET R 2 FE (F)

BB RE R E 165 [HE)

ARERAFEREDRABT BV B REEF165%
[HE] - BRMBHRELERNF16RHIITER - 51
B JHREREHENRA - BB HRE LR
FIRCRASEEWER - LK E KK R
PR ERRAEN2019F1 A1 HARE & H 6
. Mira M BRRNLBEMERRER2019
FIAEMAERNETRREBEERZRE2R -

REFEVHREERE165 - WS QO RBIY
B M4 T — B [ R 2 1 7] 38Rl & 2 8 R O
o RZEHNEHELREHE -ERABTEM
BHREEA 165K SABLEANBEREEH
ENHEE AEERREAREELEEAR
BREBAT —EAAXATHEE (TRHABE]) &
KEEEEMERI - EREEERVIZKAGT
B HERURAR R ITERBERBERE - £
AREENKABHROHERANEEAGRZE
BHEMBYERRAE - AR KB EREE
BE -HEBRHBVRAEANEEEEN X
RARAEENKWBEFE - HR - HEAER
BEMERRLEENFTETAE -SERAHEER
KEEEEMHEMS HENKZHEERUER
SRR/ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS16 “Leases” (Cont’d)

The effects of adoption of HKFRS16 at 1 January 2019

2. EXRSTHERRBEGE)

21 RAEEE(E)

(b) FETER - EAIEETR2FE (F)

BB BT ERF 1695 [HE (&)

R2019F 1 A1 BEMNE B B R EERE 165 H

are as follows: FEWNT
Increase
30
HK$'000
F& T
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 2,614
Investment in associates REEE N RRE 43,322
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,672
Retained earnings REE & 43,264

The reconciliation from operating lease commitments at
31 December 2018 to lease liabilities at 1 January 2019

R2018F 12 A3 1 M2 HERERN2019F1
A1HMNHEEAGENYERNOT

is as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments at 2018412 A31H MK &S E & IE
31 December 2018 17,193
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 201951 A1 B INEFIIEE
at 1 January 2019 ERERES 4.89%
Discounted operating lease commitments 7201951 A1 H TR & & & e
at 1 January 2019 16,511
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases B P REHEEREKEEEEMRE
and leases of low-value assets A R HE (13,839)
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 MR2019F1 A1 EE & 2,672

68 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

The following amendments to standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been
issued but are not effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not been early
adopted:

HKFRS3
(amendments)

Definition of a business
(effective from 1 January
2020)

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
(effective date not yet
determined but available for
adoption)

Definition of material (effective
from 1 January 2020)

HKFRS10 and
HKAS28
(amendments)

HKAS1 and HKASS
(amendments)

Management anticipates that the adoption of the
above amendments to standards will have no material
effect on the results and financial position of the
Group.

(c) Going concern

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$814,453,000
primarily due to the fact that the Group has liabilities
under short-term bank and other borrowings (the
“Short-term Borrowings”) of HK$2,187,988,000.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections which covers a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2019. Given that
the Short-term Borrowings of HK$2,121.0 million
are guaranteed by CEC, and taking into account the
financial resources available to the Group, including
the internally generated funds, expected renewal and
extension of borrowings upon their maturities and the
available committed borrowing facilities, the Board
considers that there are sufficient financial resources
available to the Group to meet its liabilities as and
when they fall due in the coming twelve months
from 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern-basis.

2. EXSHEBRRBEGE)

21 HRUEE(E)

(b) FETER - EAEET R 2 FE (F)

DEMEMARNR2019F1 B1BBB 2 @584
MEBWARITIRER PN BAEB XS F B 2 2R
BT

ERVIERELER EBZEE(BH2020F1A1
F3%% (1BE]) B ER)

FEVHREREL REFEHBZRANAGE
FIORLELE NEIAZEEREREA
FHHERIZE 2855 (EMBEHIRFHEE - K
(3T) A] 2 ER M)

FEGFEAFE 1R ERZESE (B2020F1 41
K 85k (1&7]) H A& 4 &)

EIEEBEHERA R ERBTTHAKRENRER
MBERRL EERTE -

&)

2
=

(©) FFEEE

M

R2019%12A318 * AREZRBRERNER
E)E 814,453,000/ * TEHNAKERT
H2,187,988,000/8 7L/ MiR1T R MEE ([ H
fEE1) »

EEe0BEHAEEREH2019F12A31H#EsT
TPRT+ AR ZIRERETER - ERN AL
2,121 0BT R BEERTHE FEERGE
EREEEBANEEABAZHEER B8R
HEAZES  FBHIPEETEHMER K& A]
PREZEREEEERE EEeRAAEEE
A EA 2 B RAEAEB2019F12 831
HEEFTARKR+—@EAZBHzAE Bt EFE
N ECEREERBUGAVIERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year will be included in the consolidated financial
statements from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal (except for
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
which are accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting
on those common control combination as disclosed
in Note 2.2(c) below, the acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for business combination
by the Group. The consideration transferred for an
acquisition is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Any contingent
consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Acquisition-related
transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s
statement of financial position (Note 2.8). Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company in the
Company'’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control by the
Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under common control, whichever is shorter and
regardless of the effective date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous statement of
financial position dates or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination (Cont’d)

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(d) Associates (Cont’d)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of result of associates” in the statement of
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(e) Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined it to be a joint venture. Investment in
joint venture is accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an interest
in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of post-acquisition profit or loss and movements in
other comprehensive income. The Group’s investment
in a joint venture includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the
cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of result of a joint venture”
in the statement of profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3  Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Company has adopted HK$ as its presentation currency
because the management considered it is more
beneficial to the users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.3

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

— Buildings and leasehold ~ 5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
(Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised within
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct
costs of construction incurred in property less any
impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and available for
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and, where
applicable, borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property or for which the market has become less active
continues to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair
values are recognised within “other income” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
under construction or development for future use
as investment property is classified as investment
property under construction. Where fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised as a revaluation. The resulting
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in other
comprehensive income and as increases in property
revaluation reserve within equity. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and the remaining part of the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and as
increases in property revaluation reserve within equity.
For a transfer from completed properties held for
sale or properties under development to investment
properties that will be carried at fair value, any
difference between the fair value of the property at
that date and its previous carrying amount shall be
recognised in profit or loss.

2.6 Land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights. For the land use rights held
for self-use, the upfront payments are recorded as a
separate asset and are amortised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
their lease periods. For the land use rights held for sale,
the upfront payments are recorded as land use rights
held for sale. Land use rights held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

2.7 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of one to three years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each statement
of financial position date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.9 Financial assets
2.9.1  Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.9.1  Classification (Cont’d)

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of holding financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.9.1  Classification (Cont’d)
(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.9.2  Recognition and derecognition

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
are measured at the transaction price determined in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’'s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and either the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset or the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.9.3  Subsequent measurement
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.9.4  Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12 month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.9.4  Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments.

The Group may consider a financial asset is
credit-impaired when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.9.4 Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

Stage 3 — Financial instruments that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

2.10 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, and bank and other borrowings.

2.10.1 Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
2.10.2 Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

2.10.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour,
manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or
less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the
government grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grant
relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Government grant
relating to an expense item is deferred and recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2.15 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred taxation is not recognised for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred taxation
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont’d)
(i) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.17 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
— administered funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed
by local government authorities in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions.

2. EXRSTHERRBEGE)

2.16 B 1&

AEERERENEMHMARAERGHIERNL
HERME RAAEFSENLERMENEHE
IR EMHTER TEREE - TR
KEE R R MEREE -

WMEZEBUET REFERENMNLE
R AFEREZETENERERE - BIEER—
BEEESAEamEPRX—EEENHERNA
BEMERR(E - 7R MER R -

BRERATAANERFTRBHRFENERE TN
XHBREFE  ZMERBREEHHYHEERH
BEMARREERERBRF G o KR ERSmE
ME BB FER SF B -

217 EEEA
(a) RIS EF

AEERBEEZAEREEBRL —RBRHIMELE
Trt & ([RfEERE]) - ZBEETE—BT
BUNGE HEEABIUGHREEESRA -
AEEHBBES S CHRRELRIIERX -

AEEGETREEZHMBARABRBRBRED R
AR MATESR T BAREEE 2B TR
PREHEI R - WX FRNGT 8 2 RN E A R &t
ABER AKEAWERREREEEEEE—F
K

94 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

2.18 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
resources occurs so that the outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.
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e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Revenue recognition
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. When the consideration
in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Revenue from
transferring of goods or services is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on acceptance of the goods by
customers or where contract provides a product quality
inspection time period, the product quality inspection
time period has lapsed. The Group considers that the
control of asset is transferred to the customer at the
end of the quality inspection time period.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain goods for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. The Group does
not provide service-type warranty, and therefore, the
Group does not consider the warranty a separate
performance obligation. These assurance-type
warranties are accounted for under HKAS37
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

For contracts which provide a customer with a right
to return the goods within a specified period, the
expected value method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS15 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

(b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

(c) Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.21 Leases

Policies applicable from 1 January 2019
(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Leases (Cont’d)
Policies applicable from 1 January 2019 (Cont’d)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease and are measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable. As the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,
the Group’ s incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date is used to calculate the present
value of lease payments. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the interest on the leases liabilities and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification or a change in the lease term.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

For lease with a term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and does not contain a purchase
option ( “short-term lease” ) and lease of asset that
are considered to be of low value (“lease of low-value
asset” ), lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policies applicable prior to 1 January 2019

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development

costs

that are directly attributable to the design and

testing of identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development of the software
product are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product cost includes employee costs for
software development and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22 Research and development costs
(Cont’d)

Other development costs that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
three years.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group had some business
activities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group’s business activities are primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk in respect of Hong Kong dollars
against RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. In addition, the
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by -the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been HK$576,000 lower/higher
(2018: HK$1,440,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains or losses on translation
of Hong Kong dollars denominated cash and cash
equivalents, and bank and other borrowings.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign
currencies, the Board is of the view that foreign
exchange risk in relation to transactions denominated
in other foreign currencies is low. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis for these currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing
assets such as deposits held in banks and other
financial institutions. The average interest rate of
deposits held in banks and other financial institutions
at 31 December 2019 was 3.5% (2018: 2.9%) per
annum. The average interest rate of short-term deposits
at 31 December 2019 was 2.6% (2018: 3.2%) per
annum. Any change in the interest rate from time to
time is not considered to have a significant impact on
the Group’s performance.
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group’s interest rate risk which affects
its results and operating cash flows also arises from
interest-bearing liabilities such as bank and other
borrowings. The bank and other borrowings were at
fixed and variable rates and exposed the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings at fixed rate and variable rate were as
follows:
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If the interest rate on variable rate borrowings had
been higher/lower by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would have been HK$6,000
lower/higher (2018: HK$145,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on variable
rate borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets net of loss
allowance as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has formulated a defined
credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

At 31 December 2019, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment of trade receivables measured
at amortised cost. For financial assets such as trade
receivables measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, other receivables, short-term
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents, they are
classified within stage 1 for measurement of ECLs as
the carrying amount is not yet past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including
maintaining sufficient working capital, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
borrowing facilities and the ability to close out market
positions, is adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by ensuring that sufficient committed
borrowing facilities are available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
by maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are based on the contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the financial liabilities. The Group’s
consideration of going concern is set out in Note 2.1(c).

3. UXREREREGE)

3.1 HMBEBREEE)
@  RBELER

AEERABRZRBDECRRERE  BRES
HITRHEEES RUZIEAKRBERBARIA
REFXRAIHDAESMNREEMHFREZEN °
ENHREBRZEZ2HLE  AEERBHERERN
AHBAZEARBERAE BUERESH
&2 BIE M

TREJIAEBRKEE ZSHMAG - HIVIRRNA
FAZIMER  REAMBARAKBEANIIEA
ZRBHEETON - RRPBEBEZEMAES
BIORBANZATRASRENE - AEEHH
REFERENEEFBHNME2.100 °

31 December 2019
2019%12A31H
More than

1 year but less
than 5 years

Within 1 year —Fp L Total

—ER EBERBBRF at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FERT FERT

Bank and other borrowings BARHEMEE 2,262,477 - 2,262,477

Lease liabilities HERE 22,080 34,678 56,758

Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMENKIE

(excluding salary and welfare (NBIE N F MR iE A

payables and other taxes payables) K E A EMFIE) 476,366 - 476,366

2,760,923 34,678 2,795,601
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

3. U¥REREE(E)

3.1 HM¥BEBREEE)
@)  RBELEE (E)

31 December 2018
201812 A318
More than

1 year but less
than 2 years

Within 1 year —FE Total

—%R BN RMF CE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT TAET TAET

Bank and other borrowings BORHEMEE 2,378,339 - 2,378,339

Trade and other payables B 5 REfh R RIE

(excluding salary and welfare (NBIERE N Z AR R

payables and other taxes payables) K E A EMFIE) 571,789 - 571,789

2,950,128 - 2,950,128

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, which
comprises issued equity and reserves.

3.2 EBXEARER

AEBETAFEERERRAEE I BRET
REGE  UEBELESRESESAERR
SN TS PNCERE Y [P S
FE—H

ARE T EAREEEES (BFRTREME
) - RADEERR A E RS (BT R
CEVT TR
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits.
Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt.

The Group’s gearing ratios as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

3. U¥ERERGE

3.2 EBXEKRER(£Z)

ARERAAAARLREREARR - Il R
TAE TSR R A A B H - SRR
EREARLRALEENAERGERTE - &
RRBREA M BRRE IR 2 2 EBS
-

A20194F M2018%E12A31R  KREB B KA
BHEMOT :

2019 2018

2019% 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHETT

Bank and other borrowings (Note 28) RITREMEE (H:+28) 2,187,988 2,295,297
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B -BReERBEEFED

(Note 23) (Htit23) (350,219) (375,525)

Short-term deposits (Note 22) HETER (A ZE22) (450,994) (91,303)

Net debt (Note 36) B 55 (H1iF36) 1,386,775 1,828,469

Total equity A 2,056,766 1,941,183

Total capital &R 45 3,443,541 3,769,652

Gearing ratio BEREFELX 40.27% 48.50%

In the opinion of the Board, the Group’s capital risk is
not significant.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable, as follows:

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

EZeRA/AKERE ZERAARTERK

s FARAEFEDNEHREEXRGBENE
BmiET 2 HECREHAE) S -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (ie prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the financial assets that are measured at
fair value during the year are as follows:

3.

3.3

BBERER (&)

D REME ()

E_MOREFEDNRE -RMBRZKRE
$7I\ EESE‘JZEE—JE&(EHFW)‘W%K
E)BRZBERS -

MAREFEDAEREERAGBZI
T&% ﬁ%%ﬁfﬁ(%ELA&R/T\Z%(?FME{@E&

,8
1=

AREFNARAREAEZEREEZEFHNOT :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Wealth management products M EEEER B Bo& E=& &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2018 M2018F181H - - 202,485 202,485
Transfer between levels A% B = 142,360 (142,360) =
Exchange differences [ =58 — (3,081) (844) (3,925)
Additions 2 - 180,720 370,835 551,555
Disposals HE - (282,641)  (425,445)  (708,086)
At 31 December 2018 720185%12H31H - 37,358 4,671 42,029
At 1 January 2019 M2019%F1H1H - 37,358 4,671 42,029
Exchange differences BEHER - (331) (103) (434)
Additions # = 63,398 59 63,457
Disposals & - (90,910) = (90,910)
At 31 December 2019 720195128318 - 9,515 4,627 14,142

See Note 15 for disclosures of the investment
properties that are measured at fair value.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

Judgment is required in determining the timing of
revenue from contracts with customers. Revenue from
the sale of integrated circuit products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
products or where contract provides a product quality
inspection period when the product quality inspection
period has lapsed.

The Group considers that the expected value method
is the appropriate method to use in estimating the
variable consideration for the sale of integrated circuit
products with rights of return, given the large number
of contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration
in the transaction price, the Group considers whether
the amount of variable consideration is constrained.
The Group considers that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical
experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable
consideration will be resolved within a short time
frame.

4. FEZGHETTRAE

41 HEFZHEZEHNEEZBWA

RETEEPZRZANEE Z W AR B
BITEHIE - HESKNEBEMNBAREEE
HEEETEPHNEREMER  —RRINEMR
BRERZEREHENR (WEOM T —EE
mEEREH) L -

ERNREANNFENRER - AXERSERAEH

HEETHITEREBENITA -

IEA A Z2HES BT ARZER2H - A&E
SERAIZHESHEELIRG - AEBEREE
WELR  XHBRBRRITEBNRN BRI &
HBEMMGFLEZRSG o do - AJEEEEN T HE
FEMEAS IR I BR -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.2 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred taxation
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January
2008. During the year, the Board reassessed the
dividend policy of its major subsidiary established in the
PRC, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada
Electronics”) based on the Group’s current business
plan and financial position, certain retained earnings
generated by Huada Electronics would be distributed to
its non-PRC registered intermediate holding company
and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this respect was
provided in the year to the extent that such earnings
are estimated by the Board to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$778,293,000 (2018:
HK$615,592,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of
the PRC in the foreseeable future.

4. FEEHETIRHAE(EF)

4.2 FBHRIELZERE

AEEERTRBDAERBMAEH - REEFT
SUHERB2BER - FEDMGE RHE - KA
FEBERPHFERS MFEHHAETEHERRK
ZMBETE - M FFHRIEZRBHBERERIN
AR SR REERNBEERYERZM
BREECEHARBELETSE -

RIEFBIMERMAEHE - B2008F1A1HE » &
BRI R AR EE M EE 9 R EE
WI0% M FEIABH - RAFAR  EFFGERNK
S ERE RET 8 R BN R EAR AL
BerXrB2MEARILRTEEAETFRIFARE
ERAB([EXEF)WREBE  EAETH
TR A 0 K T A R B RSN  REHE R A
A At UEFSMEFRAER S KD K&
MAER RAFERARETEHRBRGFELR
e

AEBUERTEHRATEMBARNRBEETER
AITE B AR R 2R R BIIR SN & 58 /778,293,000
7 7T (20184F : 615,592,00078 7T ) B % F) B # 1K
ERIBBEE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.3 Provision for expected credit losses
on trade receivables

Except for certain trade receivable from customers
with specific credit risk that management adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the past
due days for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (ie by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (ie gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 20 to the
financial statements.

4. FEGHETIRHAE(E)

43 EBZRVURERHMEEEREZRE

RERERAGHTERARETRARFNE
5 18 g 5B I P B B R BT £ %5 + AR
S 8 UE R 8 5 OB e TS BB -
BEE R AR BUBEL AN TAESESE (8
BIE - EREL  BFERRTR) 2 B0 A
B E -

BRERESNERASENELBRENE - K
SEERBANEEER URABRELEEBRL
B M AERERE o fign - AR R TR BV AR (BNEY
NEERE) BERR-FABIL  EFEEH
BAOBEIRN BEREHNRBSWHAE EBR
TH EBELEBERIMEORBEREN > Lo
AR M ET R B 1L -

HELEBRINNEHR - TR KN M TEH
EEBEZHENEBENIEAR -—EEZNMG
e HHIEEERNSBHIREMNEL LIRS
RBEMRRBRHE ANEBNELEEBERERK
HEERRNTRRA B A AR ERARAREFHNE
RENBR - BEAAKREE 5 EUFANELRE
EREMNERBRER B RARME20 -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.4 Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the Board assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation
of fair value of investment properties of the Group.
The fair value of investment properties are assessed
annually by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation is principally based on direct comparison
method by taking into account the terms of any
existing leases and other external evidence such as
current market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation rates
that reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued. The valuation techniques and significant
assumptions of investment properties are disclosed in
Note 15.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the statement
of financial position date. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
has to estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

4. FEEHETIRHAE(EF)

4.4 KREVERLAAE

FA EFGTHEEEHAEEREVELR
BfEFAZIERR REVEZAAEESFAMH
BUEXMAEMIELTE ZEEITBERNER
HBUE » SEAERRIRABL 2 G R EAMINEE
BRI AR NE 2 REHSHEE K
HEEBR) LEARREMEBECEEZRRFEM
SR ERCLLRGHE - REVMEZHETA
REBRBREEM TSP KE -

45 FEMEERE

AEERMBEIRRKXBHFFEMEIEREER
BHRMEFRETR - 2B PFRET AR LUK E IE
TREEMNREER  AETRENR - BES
ERE-—REEX—RASEAENNKAER
BEAKEEER  ffEREENE AR ERD
EXRAEREFRABENRSE - AR BEREENX
AZERBEERATFRGTRAHNRNNEER S
MASRELAABENERLEEENIEZERA
AE-EEEMHECRERR A EEXR
TELBUNEFARRERE - ERMEEAR
BERAFEZFHERENRE -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

5. WA K2 E8E &

INFORMATION
(a) Revenue (@) WA
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLtLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Sale of integrated circuit products HEEKERE R 1,695,486 1,686,996

All the revenue of the Group are from sale of goods,
which is recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods is transferred to the customers.

(b) Operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board (the chief
operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board assesses
the performance of an operating segment based on a
measure of its operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

The Board considers that the Group’s operations
are operated and managed as a single segment and
accordingly, no operating segment information is
presented.

Revenues of HK$373,768,000, HK$344,619,000
and HK$191,665,000 (2018: HK$379,004,000 and
HK$200,523,000), respectively, derived from 3 (2018:
2) external customers of the Group have exceeded 10%
of the revenue of the Group. Save as disclosed herein,
no revenue derived from a single external customer has
exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group’s revenue is attributable
to the market in the PRC and over 90% of the
Group's non-current assets are located in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

AEERMANBRARBHEESER  HIRBEMH
ZHREEBRERE PR ER

(b) EE7I

EEECOREEFS (TBLERKE) CEHNE
AERBAERDEERANRE ﬁEE**Lﬁﬁ
EZgRBELENMZBLLEN (TEBERD
A RMA RS UFFEERSE -

EFEeARAEBEZEBUNE-—DHEER
2 MU ERBELEDHLEFR -

il

DRIREAEE 3% (2018F : 2R) I AR
F A& #(373,768,000% JT * 344,619,000/ 7T &
191,665,000 7¢ (20184F : 379,004,000/ 7T
%:200,523,0008 7T) WA BBAEBEKA Z
10% ° BRANSCATH BE & o + W H b2k 5 B —Hh
AXFEZWANBBAAREERAZI0% -

5850 7 B HE100% 2 A 3R 9 B o L T 45 L
1B3B90% 2 IR A E LR P E - L BB
EIEAH -
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6. HfWA

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

6. OTHER INCOME

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

Government grants B8RS 78 B 10,179 14,511

Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—MegRalas - 2,415

Exchange gains P 5 e - 2,050

Fair value gains on financial assets BRARBEFABR

at fair value through profit or loss TREEAAERE 957 3,229
Gains on disposal of financial assets HERDAEFAER

at fair value through profit or loss T ELE E RS 1,722 7,211

Gain on disposal of a building in the PRC & — R A H B A8 F &= 9,122 -

Interest income M EWA 9,819 -

Rental income & A 2,434 2,531

Others Hit 677 908

34,910 32,855

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and
marketing costs and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

7. RUEEESZER

SIFESHERRA « SHE RIS HEEKAMITERAX
ZERAMOT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation and amortisation expenses T E R#HE A
(Notes 13, 16 and 17) (Ktat13 - 16517) 44,209 45,379
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14) £ A EEIE (H/it14) 21,670 -
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BB WAL (47:£8) 160,998 161,223
Changes in inventories of finished goods ~ &KX M EXHMFEEH
and work in progress 135,952 197,594
Raw materials and consumables used FT R R &L B 994,449 919,501
Provision for inventories (Note 19) FazEE(HFE19) 28,586 40,285
Rental expenses for short-term leases and REHHEEREKEEEEHEHE2
leases of low-value asset -3 5,623 =
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZKEHRERS - 16,629
Auditor’s remuneration % BB B & 2,548 2,573
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE (Cont’d)

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2019 were HK$221,746,000 (2018:
HK$211,823,000) and mainly comprised of employee
costs of HK$111,896,000 (2018: HK$110,787,000)
and material costs of HK$61,311,000 (2018:
HK$34,375,000). No research and development costs
were capitalised during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: nil).

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

7. RUEISZER(E)

HZE2019F 12831 B It FEZ2HERFEXAN A
221,746,000/ 7T (20184 : 211,823,000/ 7T )
TEBFEEE K ZA111,896,0007% 7T (20184 :
110,787,000/8 7T) &M KK Z4861,311,000/% 7T
(20184 : 34,375,000/%7C) > REIE2019%12H
BMHIEFER - WEMFERBAEKA T ILE R
(20184 : #) -

8. EERAMAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  ¥& - ZBE N BEYREF 143,583 139,626
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIVEE R (it (a) X (b))

(Notes (a) and (b)) 17,415 21,597

160,998 161,223

(a) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to MPF Scheme are expensed as
incurred.

(b)  The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible
for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries
made contributions to retirement schemes in
the PRC and are expensed as incurred.

(a) AEEREFESEREERIRES
g - NEBEYREEFE 2HANELR
FIMERST °

(b) ARFEHBEZHMEBRRRESEDED K
RPI2EEREFRAKEE - PEBRM
TRFHEREZETERKER ZRIK
SEME - 2FPENE QR ERKG BIE
HERAEREERFIIEFR
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Cont’d)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

Total emoluments paid to the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the year are as follows:

8. EE®AMAX(E)

(0 ITEZEEFMAL

FAXNTAEELEERTFMA LT 2EME M
T

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018

2019% 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FA&ETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #r& - LR EWET 4,287 4,482
Bonuses TE4T 4,266 5,842
Contributions to retirement schemes RORET IR 1,131 786
9,684 11,110

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one director of the Company (2018: nil) and
their emoluments were within the following bands:

hAEmEeSHFMALTEE—R (2018F : &) KA F
BEEMBESEZMENTATEHE :

Number of individuals

ANE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,0005% 7T 3 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000 7T - 1
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FA - AEESER DL K FMA LA EMR
& V7% hn B 7N &= B Sk N BR By 2 2R B sk 1 R B
Z e -
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9. FINANCE COSTS - NET 0. BERK—EEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T 7T
Finance costs: &R ¢
— Interest expense —FETH 103,381 97,610
Finance income: BB WA
— Interest income — R B U A (2,074) (5,614)
Finance costs — net RUE KA — F 58 101,307 91,996
10. TAXATION 10. HIE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLLEE
2019 2018
201945 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Current taxation RNEEHIE
— PRC corporate income tax —HBEREREH 5,395 15,456
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —BEoERaEMNzZENMEN
(Note (c)) (K1:t(c)) 8,523 414
13,918 15,870
Deferred taxation TEAEF IR
— PRC corporate income tax —HBERERED (4,938) 513
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — &% Btim M 2 FBHFTEH
(Note (c)) (Ktat(c) (11,776) 11,342
(16,714) 11,855
(2,796) 27,725
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10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

118

TAXATION (Cont’d)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Group did not generate any

assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

In accordance with the corporate income
tax laws of the PRC, the applicable
statutory tax rate of Huada Electronics and
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co.,
Ltd (“Huahong"”) is 25%. However, Huada
Electronics and Huahong qualified as an
“Integrated Circuit Design Enterprises in
National Planning Layout” (“ICDE") for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and
thus enjoyed a 10% preferential tax rate
(2018: 10% preferential tax rate). Based on
management’s self-assessment and their track
record of success in obtaining such types of
qualifications, it is highly likely that Huada
Electronics will continue to qualify as an ICDE
and Huahong will qualify as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” after the year ended 31
December 2019 and thus will enjoy a 10% and
a 15% preferential tax rate, respectively.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when
a foreign investment enterprise in the PRC
distributes dividends out of the profits earned
from 1 January 2008 onwards to its overseas
investors, such dividends are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&

BN AREBNEE2019F12A318 IFFE
EREBTEELTMERTOER - &I
W EBFE T EE (201845 « ##) o

BIBEFBEPEMETRENRE EXE
REBETENEREREEAR ([
W) ZEREERER25% ° A - HE
2019F12A31H I FEEAREFRET
BEIBRXREMBEANEKERZTEE]
(BREREEZEE]) BER - BibE
AETMNETZRI10% 2 EEHE (2018
F10%ZBEHREK) ERNEEENE
RFBEARBEKRKIDESZBERER
REE2019F12A31HIEFE 214 #
AEFHRAUGCEEESHRERER
RACEERNENBES S FREME
¥ IERITAMBE DB ZZ10%K15% .2
BEME -

BIBEFBRCEMERENBBRE AR
BAZINEIRECEUREREEINEE
EHE B2008F1A1HRREEN & F -
ZER B BHMI0%TEATET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

10. TAXATION (Cont’d) 10. ®IE(Z
(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation on (d) AEBERBAIEFNZHREREZSAERE
the Group's profit before taxation and the EMEMGFE 2 ERMIBZHEREAT ¢
theoretical taxation that would arise using the
respective applicable statutory tax rates is as
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831BLLEE
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit before taxation B B AT A A 154,790 144,315
Calculated at respective applicable REBHEAEEMEAE
statutory tax rates ZTHIB 33,529 59,837
Effect of tax concession MIERR 2 & (36,243) (34,198)
Research and development costs T 7t K B 88 B AR BB AN BR
additional deductions (14,717) (12,126)
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (15,973) (38,344)
Expenses not deductible for taxation ED
purposes 23,893 20,027
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MELBHELEHRBE XL
taxation (285) (405)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets for AR FEHRBEERT
previous year's tax losses BT IEE E - 11,158
Withholding tax on distributed profits Eoim RAER
and current year's undistributed profits R BLE N 2 IS 5,270 17,722
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WERERELEHBEEZ
asset was recognised HIEE1E 1,730 4,054
Taxation IR (2,796) 27,725
(e) Deferred taxation (e) EZEHIE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%12H31H 2018412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deferred tax assets BT IE A E 42,120 38,024
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (12,923) (24,511)
29,197 13,513
HEEFEARNKARAR 2019FFE®R 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S A s
mEMBEHERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E
10. TAXATION (Cont'd) 10. WHIE (&
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d) (e) EERIE (&)
The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities WAt R E AR 2 88 - FARLE
during the year without taking into consideration the MEBEERBEZEZHOT :
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority
are as follows:
Salary and
Impairment welfare Deferred
of payables government
inventories BN &M grants Others Total
Deferred tax assets EEHEERE FEHE NERN EERRHH Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET THL TAR TET
At 1 January 2018 R2018%181H 3,658 3,206 4,379 29,737 40,980
Exchange differences = (310) (168) (254) (1,115 (1,847)
(Charged)/credited to the statement of GTA)/BRBRR
profit or loss 4,168 623 1,531 (7,431) (1,109)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 7,516 3,661 5,656 21,191 38,024
At 1 January 2019 R2019%181H 7,516 3,661 5,656 21,191 38,024
Exchange differences ERER (222) (80) (129) (489) (920)
Credited to the statement of profitor loss &4 8% 3,251 23 281 1,461 5,016
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A8318 10,545 3,604 5,808 22,163 42,120
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
Fair value profits
gains KA EEF Total
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRESE DAERE ZBEARSEH Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THEL TERT
At 1 January 2018 720181818 3,214 10,912 14,126
Exchange differences N =% 1 (362) (361)
(Credited)/charged to the statement (Ee) tABEER
of profit or loss (596) 14,532 13,936
Reclassification to current income ENHEEEHEN
tax payable P15 50 5B = (3,190)  (3,190)
At 31 December 2018 720185F12H31H 2,619 21,892 24,511
At 1 January 2019 720191818 2,619 21,892 24,511
Exchange differences ENERE 379 (269) 110
Charged to the statement of SFFABRE
profit or loss 78 5,270 5,348
Reclassification to current income ENEEEHER
tax payable FT{S BRI = (17,046) (17,046)
At 31 December 2019 ®2019512831H 3,076 9,847 12,923
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

10. TAXATION (Cont’d)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

The amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position include the following:

10. BE (&
(e) IEEFIE(E&)

RESVBARARINTZ2BEENUTIER :

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
2019%12831H 2018912 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T

Deferred tax assets EEHBEEE
— To be recovered after 12 months — #1218 A & Uk D 15,325 -
- To be recovered within 12 months ~ — #7121 A A Yk [E 26,795 38,024
42,120 38,024

Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
— To be settled after 12 months — #1218 A B ER 3,076 -
— To be settled within 12 months — 1218 A RE 9,847 24,511
12,923 24,511

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carrying forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. At 31 December 2019, the Group
did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$64,863,000
(2018: HK$62,919,000) in respect of losses amounting
to HK$393,110,000 (2018: HK$381,329,000) that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. Tax
losses of HK$393,110,000 has no expiry date (2018:
HK$381,329,000).

BEFBEENREE s HIEEEMEER - &
LAE ] e 3 R 2R 2 FEER Bt i A1) 2 R B B TR 18 A
=R c R2019F 128318 - RNEBI KRG
B DU 5 R SR FE ER Bl A1 2 E518393,110,0005%
7T (20184F : 381,329,000 7T ) T 37 i IE B 18 &
64,863,000/ 7T (20184 : 62,919,000/ 7T) °
393,110,000% 7T < i TA E5 1B 30 4% & iy H 85 (2018
£ : 381,329,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

11. DIVIDEND

1. RKRE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Proposed dividend EERE 46,687 40,597

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK2.3 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: HK2.0 cents per share). The proposed
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The proposed dividend of
HK$46,687,000 (2018: HK$40,597,000), calculated
based on the Company’s number of shares issued at
30 March 2020, is not recognised as a liability in these
consolidated financial statements.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the following data:

BEEEREMREE2019F128318 - FEIR
tsz 37810 (20184 « TFRR2.081L) B - M=
ERBEAFARABRERARREERRAF
Kgﬁ%tt/&@% FEEE - IRIE A QA HR2020
FIAHWMEBRITROHBBTENEZRE
46,687,000/8 7T (20184 : 40,597,000/ T ) I £
RIFEMBRENERS—HAE -

12. BRER
FRERBF RS T B E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Profit for the year attributable to AARERFEEEREZ
owners of the Company (HK$'000) REE M (FHET) 155,159 113,321
Weighted average number of ordinary RAAHEBREARRER 2
shares for the purposes of basic TR MNETEEAE
earnings per share 2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREARZF GEL) 7.64 5.58

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any potential ordinary share
outstanding.

HRARRLEEAIRETEEEBR  RLE
KEGREERT -
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -HBERRERE
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
BER machinery vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
RENELE  BEREE EF  GRR%E HBIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TiER
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ218E12A31A L EE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 382,146 19,060 2,288 2,95 13,902 420352
Exchange differences EiEE (15,844) (1,500 (74) (99) (647) (18,164)
Additions AE - 3411 - 729 623 4,763
Transfer upon completion RIEE - 387 - - (387) -
Transfers 3 (23,244) 23,244 - - - -
Disposals BE - (625) (245) (476) - (1,346)
Depreciation ik (27,930) (8,268) (594) (1.214) - (38,006)
Closing net book amount EREETE 315,128 35,709 1375 1,89 13,491 367,599
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31R
Cost A 389,29 115,265 7,525 9,613 13,491 535,190
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (74,168) (79,556 (6,150) (7,717) - (167,591)
Net book amount BEFE 315,128 35,709 1375 1,896 13,491 367,599
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ019E128MBLEE
Opening net book amount ENRERE 315,128 35,709 1375 1,896 13,491 367,599
Exchange differences ERZE (1.727) (643) (20) (34) (295) (2719
Additions hE 7,053 3,169 - 649 - 10,871
Disposals RE (275,684) (278) - (16) - (275,978)
Depreciation ik (24,270) (10,827) (524) (999) - (36,620)
Closing net book amount EXEEFE 20,500 27,130 831 1,496 13,196 63,153
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31R
Cost A 69,694 114,022 7,360 9,098 13,196 213,370
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (49,194) (86,892) (6,529) (7,602) - (150,217)
Net book amount EHFE 20,500 21,130 831 1,49 13,196 63,153

Depreciation expense of HK$1,427,000 (2018:
HK$2,048,000), HK$3,447,000 (2018: HK$4,946,000)
and HK$31,746,000 (2018: HK$31,012,000) has been
charged to selling and marketing costs, cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

Yr &R X 1,427,000/ 7T (20184 : 2,048,000
B IT) 0 3,447,000 T (20184 : 4,946,000/
JC) %31,746,0007% 7T (20184 : 31,012,000/
T EDRIFFAEE RS HERAE - HEKAK
MITBAXL -

HEEFEANKERIE 2019FFHK
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e MR MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FERAEEE
Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FHET

At 1 January 2019 201951 A1H 2,614

Exchange differences MEHZR 10

Additions = 89,852

Effect of rental reduction AR R E (17,898)

Depreciation e (21,670)

At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 52,908

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REYX

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET

Beginning of the year F1 48,847 51,202

Exchange differences fEH ZE% (1,078) (2,355)

Changes in fair value NRAEEE 522 -

End of the year FR 48,291 48,847

(a) The investment properties are located in the (a) ZEREMEAMNRPEIL I ZEIFHZ
PRC and are subject to various tenancies with ZIEMELFEE °
terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

(b) The rental income from investment (b) REE2019F12831BIEEE - %EY
properties for the year ended 31 December S WA E2,434,0005 7 (20184 -
2019 amounted to HK$2,434,000 2,531,000/ T) °
(2018:HK$2,531,000).

() The fair value of the Group’s investment (0) AEBREMER2019F12A31BZ A
properties at 31 December 2019 have been AETHRERNE B E RN B L%
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried BRABKRNBXEMGEM L REFEKRE
out on that date by Beijing Zhou Xin Da Hua BEMNMGAERLAGNE BETHE - ZA
Appraisal Co., Ltd, a firm of independent and BEFZERNEELEL  sTAEAREMR
qualified professional valuers not connected H) 2 NG e EL M AN 78 48 (10 A B 3T b B
with the Group. The valuation was principally AR E 2R MISHE SN IEEER)
based on direct comparison method by taking WERRMEEECEEZRFEMSE
into account the terms of any existing leases HZ BN RGE - MEREYHERE
and other external evidence such as current HEBRARESLRAERZEAL -
market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation
rates that reflect current market expectation
for the assets being valued. For all investment
properties, their current uses represent the
highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 124318 It FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2019, all of the fair value
measurements of the Group’'s investment
properties were categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note
3.3. There were no transfers of fair value
measurements into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

At the end of the reporting period, the
management of the Group works with Beijing
Zhou Xin Da Hua Appraisal Co., Ltd to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the Board.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Fair value at 31

15. BREWXE(Z)
© (&)

R2019F12A31H  AEEBEFFEKEY
(¥NARENEHEEALARBERRIERE
ME=H - AR ERFNEBHDEFIBE
R33N - REAN - ZFEREWEL
EARBEFEEARELE =R -

RIEER - AEEERERILREEA
FAETGEARARNLRARY REEHEA
E=W2 DA A ENEETEREE -
HEEAAEEREARDY BAEEE
FE 35 B 0 SR

EREANBABE Y BIEEA A BHE (B2
BOMBRERMT -

Range of
unobservable Relationship of
inputs/weighted unobservable inputs to

December 2019 Valuation Unobservable average fair value
Description 72019512831 technique(s) inputs HHUBE HES BUBESYSEEAALE
=15 Bz “ERE BUBRHE B/ METLHE HER
HK$'000
TET
Office building and 48,291 Direct Market price RMB31,140 The higher the market
carparks — Beijing comparison M5B per square metre  price, the higher the
BrENE—It R method HEFHK  fair value
BERLBUA AR®31,140T mHERES AAE
)

FEETEANKERAA 20198FHK 125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

16. T Hh{FARE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE

2019 2018

2019% 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Beginning of the year F4 11,302 12,314
Disposal BRE (11,302) -
Exchange differences fE X =% - (550)
Amortisation # 5 - (462)
End of the year FR - 11,302

All the land use rights are located in the PRC and with
remaining lease terms ranging from 10 years to 50

years.

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A L AR AL B R AR R 2 4 HI10E

S50FHA -

17. EBREE

Computer
software
R B
HK$'000
FHETT
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31B L EE
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 2,869
Exchange differences ERER (108)
Additions NE 6,209
Amortisation 5 (6,911)
Closing net book amount FREEMEFE 2,059
At 31 December 2018 A2018%F12831H
Cost DN 9,413
Accumulated amortisation S (7,354)
Net book amount R F(E 2,059
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12831BLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 2,059
Exchange differences ERER (45)
Additions NE 7.536
Amortisation 55 (7,589)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,961
At 31 December 2019 7A2019%12H31H
Cost BN 9,942
Accumulated amortisation S2at#E (7,981)
Net book amount REFE 1,961

Amortisation expense amounting to HK$7,589,000

(2018: HK$6,911,000) has been charged to research
and development costs under administrative expenses.

H 55 1 527,589,000/ 7 (20184 :6,911,000/%
70) BRFATTERAIA T 2B RFAEMAS
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 18. REERTRE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLFEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA7T
Beginning of the year F1) 2,665,777 2,782,326
Share of the effect of adoption JEIEER N E 7B
of HKFRS16 B 7% i 5 2E Al
F16RATE 43,322 -
Share of results FEIEE4E 121,000 126,651
— Post-acquisition profit — U BB 12 A 114,653 132,454
— Loss on cancellation of —— Mt S A a2
subsidiaries of an associate iog==NGI g (621) (1,286)
— Gain/(Loss) on anti-dilution of interest 1] /N -
in an associate MmN  (Ei8) 6,968 (4,517)
Exchange differences PE X = %E 2,153 (128,058)
Dividend g (63,923) (51,313)
Share of revaluation gains on properties FEAL ¥ 2 & 1 s - 5,853
Share of currency translation differences — fE{h & E =458 (60,440) (69,682)
End of the year FR 2,707,889 2,665,777

Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2019 and

2018 are as follows:

Name

&R

Place of establishment
and type of legal entity
RIBERAAME

Bt 4 N B A20194F 20185128310 2 #F 15 10

China Electronics Optics Valley
Union Holding Company Limited
("CEOVU")

HERARAERERAT

(MhExA])

Beijing Chipadvanced Technology Inc.
IRRERERNBRAA

Cayman Islands, limited
liability company

MERE ARAMAA

PRC, limited liability company
TE - BRELRA

The Board is of the opinion that CEOVU is material to

the Group.

T
Interest held
Principal place of igey 53
operation and activities Paid-in capital 2019 2018
IERERERER BhEx 219% 20185
PRC, development of theme HK$757,435,200 33.67% 33.47%
industrial parks in the PRC (2018: HK$761,821,200)
and related businesses 757,435,005 10
hE - RAERETBEZERR (20185 : 761,821,208 )
REREBRE
PRC, provision of integrated RMB57,907,381 1.29% 10.36%
circuit testing services (2018: RMB40,740,000)
hE - RESKEEAGRE  AR¥S79073817T
(2018% : AK%40,740,0007T)
EEeRARPEARHAEEMEBEE -
HEEFEARNKERAR 2019FF8% 127
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31H L F/E
18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 18.

(Cont’d)

The fair value of the Group's interest in CEOVU at 31
December 2019 based on the closing price of HK$0.485
per CEOVU ordinary share as quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 31 December 2019

was HK$1,236,750,000.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interest in associates at 31 December 2019

(2018: nil).

Set out below are the summarised financial information RBEXANAEREAR

of CEOVU and its subsidiaries:

i

AEERHE

REERNBRE (&)

M201912 A3 1 B ARE B R B
BREEBE(2018F : ££) o

31 December

E WA ZHERRN2019F12A31B 2 A

MEEH 236,750,000 7T © HiRIBEERPEALD
BAX2019F12 A3 1B EE B

/‘Wﬁm&zuﬂszéo.%s,%nﬁﬁ

a2 PTBIR

NGIEOE:

AlZMBEEHMT

31 December

2019 2018
2019%12831H 2018F12A31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Current "
Assets BE 13,363,373 12,642,138
Liabilities =N (4,591,049) (5,666,477)
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 7,107,684 5,952,458
Liabilities =X (6,870,947) (4,196,408)
Net assets BEFE 9,009,061 8,731,711
Net assets attributable to owners of BERREAARESEEE
CEOVU < BEFHE 7,865,811 7,923,344
Investment in an associate R—EBERAIE 2,693,919 2,652,135

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31M8LEE
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Revenue WA 3,875,841 3,589,423
Profit for the year attributable to REEmMNEBRNRELR
owners of CEOVU BEFAE 426,661 395,938
Other comprehensive income for RNEFEEMBEKE
the year:
Revaluation gains on properties M Em s - 17,578
Currency translation differences ElkmeE=5s 6,419 (209,282)
Total comprehensive income for the AFEZEKRZREEBER
year attributable to owners of CEOVU HEXARERIGTAE 433,080 204,234
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e BHRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE
19. INVENTORIES 19. #E&
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194128318 2018%F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$°000
THET THET
Work in progress 8 m 171,287 151,927
Finished goods SLRK mh 289,326 451,752
460,613 603,679

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to

HK$1,130,401,000 (2018: HK$1,117,095,000). Jo) °

Provision for inventories of HK$28,586,000 (2018:
HK$40,285,000) has been charged to cost of sales.

RBAXTFAAFERARAZFEKRAER S
1,130,401,0007 7T (20184 : 1,117,095,000/%

5 8128,586,000 L 2 FEEE (20184 -
40,285,000/87T) EFF A E KA ©

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 200 EZRHMERKRNRE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%12831H 2018F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Trade receivables B 5 e R TE 727,905 757,585
Less: Loss allowance for J ORBEE B EE (MiEb)
impairment (Note (b)) (71,016) (65,402)
Trade receivables — net BZEWRFIE—F58E 656,889 692,183
Other receivables from third parties HaEE =1 KE 22,514 17,039
Less: Loss allowance for IR OB EERE (M)
impairment (Note (c)) (567) (348)
Other receivables from third parties HiERE= KB F5E
- net 21,947 16,691
Other receivables from related parties  E ftf f& U B Bk A + 5KI18
(Note 32) (Hta£32) 1,094 3,470
Undeducted input value-added tax RINFR g EIRIGER R BN IE
and prepaid tax 14,229 3,355
Prepayments and deposits FANREBERIES 19,426 7,248
713,585 722,947
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables of the Group
approximated their fair values.

Trade and other receivables were unsecured and
interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties of
HK$71,477,000 (2018: HK$64,175,000) (Note 32).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31
December 2019 and 2018 were denominated in the
following currencies:

200 ESREMEWEIEZ)

M2019F M2018F12A31H - AEB 2B 5 K&
HEtEWREZEREEE AL BEREE -

BHREMERFELHAEEKBERAE -5t AE
SEWRBEHRACERBABALTE S RIER
71,477,000 7T (20184 : 64,175,000 7v) (/7
it32) o

NEEFR20194F K2018F12A318 28 5 M A
thEKRFIEEEEESMT

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194128318 20185 12H31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET TET

Renminbi AR 712,860 722,467
Hong Kong dollars BT 536 480
US dollars T 189 -
713,585 722,947

(a) The majority of the Group’s sales are with (a) REB ZHEERLHZEZEEH A308E

credit terms of 30 days to 135 days. The
remaining amounts are due immediately after
the delivery of goods. The ageing analysis of
trade receivables (net of loss allowance for
impairment) presented based on the revenue
recognition date is as follows:

1350 - e EN R E MR 2
H o IRIBUAFER B IR E 5 R UKIR
(R ERBERE) NREDTAT

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

2019%12H318 20185 12H31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Current to 30 days 30 307,117 330,280
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H 86,898 63,652
61 — 180 days 61HZ180H 158,620 169,427
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180H LA E R1F R 94,478 112,669
Over 1 year TF U E 9,776 16,155
656,889 692,183
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 200 BEZRHEHMEWKIEE)
(Cont’d)
(b) Movements in the loss allowance for (b) AEEEFERFIBHESERE &
impairment of the Group’s trade receivables are w
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Beginning of the year F 1) 65,402 48,259
Impairment losses, net FOREE B 7,171 20,044
Exchange differences PE X Z=RE (1,557) (2,901)
End of the year FR 71,016 65,402

At 31 December 2019, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables measured at
amortised cost was HK$510,887,000 (2018:
HK$591,251,000), of which HK$434,468,000
(2018: HK$514,541,000) was within one
year with expected credit loss rate of 0.1%,
HK$6,624,000 (2018: HK$6,482,000) was
between one year to five years with expected
credit loss rate ranging from 5.8% to 69.6%,
HK$22,234,000 (2018: HK$9,491,000) was
over five years with expected credit loss
rate of 100.0%, and HK$47,561,000 (2018:
HK$60,737,000) was from customers with
specific credit risk with expected credit loss rate
of 100.0% (2018: 90.0%).

2019124310  IHEEK AT EHN
B 5 ERFIBREZE A510,887,000
# 7T (20184 591,251,000 7©) -
DBl E434,468,000/8 7T (20184
514,541,000 70) B1F A - BHEEE
B EE0.1% ' 6,624,000/8 7T (20184 -
6,482,000/ 7T) B1FE 5% FEHEE
B8 &N F5.8%%69.6% * 22,234,000
77T (20184 9,491,000/ JT) A54F
Wk BEHEEEBEERXA1000% &
47,561,000 7T (20184 : 60,737,000/
TT)RERERFTERRNER BHEE
B8 %X /3100.0% (20184 : 90.0%) °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 200 EZRHMEWRREE)
(Cont’d)
(c) Movements in the loss allowance for (0) AN EH A R IR R E SRR e
impairment of the Group's other receivables are w
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B318LEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Beginning of the year F 4 348 166
Impairment losses REEE 231 196
Exchange differences PE X Z=RE (12) (14)
End of the year FR 567 348

132

Other receivables are mainly rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and advance to
employees. Majority of the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default. In the situation where no
comparable companies with credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The loss rate applied for such
receivables at 31 December 2019 was 4.6%
(2018: 3.0%).

EmRWHREETEAHeES - I(THE
e RTEMEEFIE - U ERIBHEH
B AR NN ERRIEER - &
EEHPACEEIAM AL RARNER
T EHEEFEERFEAZELREER
FBIERSENBIEXRFREITHE - BB
REVEH AR A RBRIRITAR R & R SR AL
RSB TEORI (RRE ) o bE WA R
2019F12A31HFMEAMEEEX R24.6%
(20184 : 3.0%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

21. BAREFARZESHMEE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194128318 20184 12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Wealth management products MEEEEM® 14,142 42,029

The wealth management products are issued
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth
management products are principal protected and
with non-guaranteed return. They are denominated
in Renminbi and can be redeemed either at any time
or at certain time within three months. The fair values
of these investments were determined with reference
to either the statements provided by the commercial
banks or discounted cash flow method.

22. SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

MEEEER  ATBRRRRITRT ZFVE
EBEMIBRANIERELRHR - WIAARBET
BERARNEFRGESI=EAANE TRHEED -
ZERENRDABNRSEBRRITAREENS
REFFTRREREEMETE -

22. WHAIER

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

2019%£12831H 2018412 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBx FETT

At banks RITHET 15,629 -
At other financial institutions H b B B 1T

— A related party (Note 32) — Bt AL (B17E32) 435,365 91,303

450,994 91,303

Short-term deposits represent deposits with original
maturity over 3 months. The effective interest rate on
these deposits at 31 December 2019 was 2.6% (2018:
3.2%) per annum.

EHERNERIPAAIMEAULEZER -
R2019F12A31H ZEBFARZ2EBRFF R A
2.6% (20184 : 3.2%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERREEEY
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%12H31H 2018412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Cash R4
At banks and on hand RITHEFERE 203,112 164,398
At other financial institutions HEM B s T
— A related party (Note 32) — B AN+ (B at32) 80,128 211,127
283,240 375,525
Time deposits (Note (a)) T HTF R (Kt (a)
At other financial institutions Huh B i B 41T
— A related party (Note 32) —Em AL (H7E32) 66,979 -
350,219 375,525
(a) Time deposits represent deposits with original (a) EMFRERIBARIGEAKUTZ
maturity of 3 months or less. Fike
24. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 24, BARGE
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
SREENBIZERER
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE BRORHR (&N BB EE &t
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THERT THER THER
At 1 January 2018, R2018EF1A18 -
31 December 2018, 2018%12H318
1 January 2019 and 20191818 K
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HE&AE
HK$'000

FHET
At 1 January 2019 7201941818 2,672
Exchange differences E 5 ZE (8)
Interest on the lease liabilities HEBEME 2,757
New leases it E 89,852
Effect of rental reduction AR E (18,302)
Lease payments HER K (23,121)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H 53,850
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EDMHmER S -
Current portion mEE D 21,670
Non-current portion ER B EBD 32,180

53,850
26. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 26. EZLBTHB

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MBLEE

2019 2018

2019% 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Beginning of the year F1) 44,083 31,863
Exchange differences PE 5 =58 (974) (1,947)
Additions 310 10,058 23,535
Credited to the statement of profit or loss & E=m* (9,500) (9,368)
End of the year FR 43,667 44,083
The amount mainly represented various subsidies ZRETEAERAEEWER MFEEE Mt s

granted by and received from local government BT H AN 2 B 1ERHE) - kB IRZA X &
authorities for financing various research and M Bz EBBEREEMB ZKAEE 2 BRI
development projects conducted by the Group. These RBEIWA

subsidies will be recognised as income over the period

necessarily to match with the cost that they are

intended to compensate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E
27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B RHEMENRIE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195128318 20184 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THET
Trade payables g 5 FIE 312,486 401,972
Other payables to related parties H b e BB A £ 5RIB
(Note 32) (Ha£32) 9,192 9,444
Salary and welfare payables F& 11 % B 0 4@ F) 56,754 57,341
Other taxes payables H A A B IE 2,062 9,350
Other payables and accrued expenses — ELfth & <t X IE B 1R & A
(Note (a)) (K1at(a)) 156,980 160,373
537,474 638,480

(a) Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (a) HtENRBEREREAFZERENAR

represented payables for software usage fees MEEFAZENZ2BHFEFRERESHE
for the purposes of research and development & °

and sales commissions.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables AEBESRNRIBETIZREZHHNERE DN
mainly based on the date of invoices is as follows: mr
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195128318 20184 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Current to 30 days 30H A 148,416 258,037
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H 38,280 58,261
Over 60 days 60H A & 125,790 85,674
312,486 401,972
Included in the balance of trade payables are trade STABSENRELEGAZENBEBALE SR
payables to related parties amounting to HK$2,030,000 18 42,030,000 7t (20184 : 38,819,000/% JT)
(2018: HK$38,819,000) (Note 32). (Kiat32) o
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts R2019% M2018F12A31H  AEB 2 E H K
of trade and other payables of the Group approximated HEMENRIBE 2 EEERLI AR ERS °

their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

28. HRITRHMEE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

2019128310 2018412A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Bank borrowings RITIEE 2,121,009 2,226,820
Entrusted loans from related parties BEALTZTEER

(Note 32) (Ht#£32) 66,979 68,477

2,187,988 2,295,297

Secured iz - 57,500

Unsecured 1 45 $ 2,187,988 2,237,797

2,187,988 2,295,297

Bank and other borrowings were arranged at fixed and
variable rates. The average effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank and other borrowings at 31 December
2019 was 4.2% (2018: 4.2%) per annum.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying
amounts of bank and other borrowings of the Group
approximated their fair values.

At 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of
HK$2,121,009,000 were guaranteed by CEC.

The bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in the following currencies:

BRITREMEETNIREBNZELHE - R2019%F
12A318 - AEERTREMEENTHERSF
M BA2% (20184 : 4.2%) °

M20199F K2018F12A31H » KAEB 2 R1T R
HEMmEEZEMEREQARBERE -

PR2019F12A318 @ A #2,121,009,000/%8 T &Y
RTEERPEEFEEIRMEER-

AEEZRTREMEEZEESHWOT :

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

2019%12H318 2018 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT Tz

Renminbi AR 2,187,988 2,237,797
Hong Kong dollars BT - 57,500
2,187,988 2,295,297
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 128318 [EFE

29. CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM 29. REELEZRER
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ128318LEE
2019 2018
2019F 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before taxation B B¢ A1 5 A 154,790 144,315
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERZRETE
and equipment 36,620 38,006
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 21,670 -
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEBSHE 7,589 6,911
Interest income ) B WA (11,893) (5,614)
Interest expenses B 103,381 97,610
Gain on disposal of property, BREWME BEREE
plant and equipment g (9,175) (404)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—MegnalzE = (2,415)
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 AR A B - 462
Share of results of associates JE(REEE DRI EE (121,000) (126,651)
Share of result of a joint venture Bl —FH& & RAIER - (228)
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 & E b FE Y FKIE
other receivables A EE 7,402 20,240
Provision for inventories FEZEE 28,586 40,285
Changes in fair value of KEMEARBEEE
investment property (522) -
Fair value gains on financial assets at AR BT ABZS /M
fair value through profit or loss BERARERZE (957) (3,229)
Gains on disposal of financial assets ~ H&ZRAA B AEBZE
at fair value through profit or loss & @B E W (1,722) (7,211)
214,769 202,077
Changes in working capital LEESEH
Inventories rE 114,480 (237,879)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H Ath e U FRIE (7,010) 26,774
Deferred government grants 1% JE BRI 4 B (416) 12,220
Changes in contract liabilities SREEES (7,014) 2,915
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik H h JE - K18 (93,016) 2,535
Cash flows generated from operations &&EAXZRERE 221,793 8,642
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessor
The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are
as follows:

30. HEXRIE
AEEEAEBAA
AEERERA RS 2 CSHREMN R KRR

REEEFHLBEMOT :

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

2019%F12H31H 2018412 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TET

Within one year 15 R 2,630 2,689
After one year but within two years FIFEREE2FRN - 2,689
2,630 5,378

The Group as lessee

The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for office
premises under the disclosure requirements prevailing
prior to 1 January 2019 are as follows:

AEBEERAEEA

RIER2019F 1 A1THAIAER 2 BB E R AEE
BREFAEGR PR AEMEZKEHEMBRE
Iz REHEERBEEBANT ¢

31 December
2018

2018412 A31H
HK$'000

FET

1R
E2FEESFNR

Not later than one year
In the second to fifth year

10,911
6,282

17,193

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liability
at 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

HEEE

R2019F12A310 ' AEEVEEMEAREE
& (20184 : #&) o

31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 124318 It F/E

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

AND BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions

in the ordinary course of business with related parties

during the year:

BEBALRSE RER

BRRAGEMBREREMTNERENS MG
BN RAFEARNEB R B E XK BES R
BALTETT TISHERRS :

(a) Significant transactions with related (a) HEBALIZEXRXRS
parties
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CEC FEETFER
Interest expenses A B 2,989 3,040
Guarantee fee ERE 10,795 11,171
Companies under common TSHEEFEE
control of CEC HEESZ DA
Sale of products $HE E 166,875 167,559
Purchase of goods and services REE R NMRE 161,116 590,804
Interest income FEMKA 5,659 3,294
Rental expenses e 653 2,360
Rental income HE KA 2,434 2,531
Property management fee YEERS 7,373 8,605
Additions of right-of-use assets SIS EREEE
(Note (i) (BtaEa)) 80,262 -
Associate g — N
Purchase of goods and services KEEmER® 6,369 7,437
(i) The Group recognised these right-of-use assets (i) AEERBEHEBAIFEE2FIWITE T UL

based on leases with terms ranging from one
year to two years, with the intention to renew

these leases for further periods.

ENHERRBRSEREEE -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BBAXTXRZRER ()
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)
(b) Significant balances with related (b) EHEREBALTZEKXLER
parties
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%12H31H 2018F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA7T
CEC PEHREFEE
Other payables H h f& ;I8 3,349 3,424
Borrowings BE 66,979 68,477
Companies under common FHEEFEER
control of CEC HEESHZ QT
Trade receivables 2 5 e W RIE 71,477 64,175
Other receivables H 4th & U 5008 1,094 3,453
Cash and deposits Re MIFR 582,472 302,430
Contract liabilities AHEaE 3,384 -
Trade payables 2 5 e RIE 1,456 37,425
Other payables H th j& -t ;I8 5,843 6,020
Associate i N |
Trade payables H 5 A RIE 574 1,394

BERLEERWMESN - LB A TERAE
B 2B X RBEEBO S FRERREE - BB A
TREREENRRENEL35% R -

Other than the deposits and the borrowings which
are interest bearing, the above balances with
related parties were unsecured, interest-free and
settled according to the relevant contract terms. The
borrowings from related parties are unsecured and with
an interest rate of 4.35% per annum.

() Key management compensation (0 TEEBAEME
Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &4 - 28E & F¥4E 6,088 5,797
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET B LR 831 550
6,919 6,347
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33. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

33. AEAAQAFAMBRARZESN

COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%12H31H 2018F12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FExT F& T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 1,231 1,539
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 2,193 -
Investments in subsidiaries WEARIRE 34 1,047,274 1,037,086
Amount due from a subsidiary i e S L NI E 2,081,853 2,128,423
3,132,551 3,167,048
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables g5 & HE A pEU IR 71,356 179,659
Financial assets at fair value BARERFAERE
through profit or loss TREE 9,515 37,358
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 55,209 114,801
136,080 331,818
Total assets EEH#E 3,268,631 3,498,866
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzREE
Equity =
Share capital and premium MR K (B 24 825,454 825,454
Reserves 1 (@) 301,078 413,383
1,126,532 1,238,837
Liabilities =i
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 77 =
Deferred tax liabilities REFIE & E = 17,119
77 17,119
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H A FE - 518 11,984 9,196
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 2,121,009 2,226,705
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,185 -
Income tax payables JE 1~ PR 15 3 IR 6,844 7,009
2,142,022 2,242,910
Total liabilities =R 2,142,099 2,260,029
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHEE 3,268,631 3,498,866

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the board of directors on 30 March
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dong Haoran E &
Director &%

RAF 2 ISR KR LEEESHK2020F3H30H
#HE-WAHTIIALKRRES:

Liu Hongzhou 24T M
Director &%
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33. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT 33. ERAAAAUMBMRARZER
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)
(a) Reserves of the Company () EARZHE
Translation Contributed Retained
reserve surplus earnings Total
X fRE Bz REEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHET
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1H1H 7,587 231,971 173,493 413,051
Total comprehensive income 2 Mz 4858 (7,463) - 68,691 61,228
Payment of dividend AR B, - - (60,896) (60,896)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12H31H 124 231,971 181,288 413,383
At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1H1A 124 231,971 181,288 413,383
Total comprehensive income  ZHE Wz 4258 (5,788) - (65,920) (71,708)
Payment of dividend IR 1~ % B — = (40,597) (40,597)
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 (5,664) 231,971 74,771 301,078

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as
specified in Section 54 thereof.

RIEBREI1981F (LF87]) » AR B2 BB A

AREZR

PRER e

HEEFEANKERIE 2019FFHK

AUERBSAGFRIAZETBER T OIRT
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34. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 3. MIBRARIKRE-ZAAT
- COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195128318 20184%F12A31H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, % & —3E % & -
at cost B AE 1,047,274 1,037,086
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December FEWE R RIR20199F &20185F 128310 2 &5
2019 and 2018 are as follows: BT

Interest held

g 3+
2019 2018
Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and 20195 20184
Name and type of legal entity ~ operation and activities paid-in capital  Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly
£ RIBHERATHE TEQEBURER AMRERER ER B & EE R
Huada Electronics  PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB446,800,000 100% - 100% -
ERET wE BREALE integrated circuit chips AR 446,800,000
mE - ERERLAZ
Rt RHE
Huahong PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB158,471,000 - 95.64% - 95.64%
B mE AREMAF integrated circuit chips ARE158,471,0007T
mE - ERBRLRZ
Rat REE
The Board is of the opinion that the non-controlling BEeRA FEUHFEREREAEEMSE
interests of Huahong is immaterial to the Group and TEE WA EBEBREL 2MBEER -
thus the financial information of Huahong is not
disclosed.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiaries, are as follows:

35. ALQAEENMHE

(i) B£E2019F12A31BLFE

EREF (BRAQRNENBE QR RERL M
BRI EIT

Estimated
money value Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme Discretionary

Name of director Fee Salary Hiig R RIKER bonuses Total
EEps ik STEREE at8l MR A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THET THT THT TET
Dong Haoran EEN - = - - -
Yu Jian@ B me - - - - -
Jiang Juncheng® ZERO - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 - - 305 789 1,844
Liu Jinmei 2 5hig - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRI 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng B kA 200 - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum R 200 - - - 200
600 - 305 789 2,444

1)

)
(3)

Discretionary bonus for the year 2018 approved and paid in
2019.

Appointed on 5 March 2019.

Resigned on 5 March 2019.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors had waived any
emoluments during the year.

M 2018FE IS EAL R 201 9FE EHE A I 3R -

@ R2019F3ASHESR T -
e MR2019F3 ASH BT ©

FARAEEYEAEEZ N ERBMESER R

AEEKMBAR 2 REHERBET ZME - FA
MEEFRETMAME -
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35. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF 35. AAQATEENME (Z)
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (ii) & ZE2018F12A31BLLEFE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s EREE (BREAQAILENBAR) BHRBS M
services as a director, whether of the Company or its BEMIEEHMEAT :

subsidiaries, are as follows:

Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme  Discretionary
Name of director Fee Salary Hiag Flf RKEF bonuses Total
B ik e ATE%EBE el WiEEa A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHT FHET THL FHET THT
Dong Haoran EER - - - - - -
Jiang Juncheng ZEK - - - - - -
Ma Yuchuan®? Fx/@ - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 M - 750 - 177 654" 1,581
Liu Jinmei® 25)ig® - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BREE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng Bk A 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum IR 200 - - - - 200
600 750 L 177 654 2,181
m Discretionary bonus for the year 2017 approved and paid in o 2017F BIBIEALR201 8 RERE A% R BE 7K ©
2018.
@ Resigned on 15 January 2018. @ M2018F 1 A15ABHE -
® Appointed on 15 January 2018. @ R2018F1 RIS AEE(E -

146 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S A N
e BEHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 A31HILFE
36. NET DEBT 36. EXFH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%F12H31H 2018%F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Cash and cash equivalents RehB2EFEEYD 350,219 375,525
Short-term deposits EHIFER 450,994 91,303
Borrowings repayable —FAEEEBE
within one year (2,187,988) (2,295,297)
Net debt (E R (1,386,775) (1,828,469)
Cash and short-term deposits He MEEBEFER 801,213 466,828
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BE% 45— BT 7 % (2,187,988) (2,237,797)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BREE -2 X = (57,500)
Net debt (ER -] (1,386,775) (1,828,469)
Liabilities
from
financing
activities -
Other assets Borrowings
HiEE repayable
within
one year
Short- REEEMN
term a8E-
Cash deposits —FR Total
Be EHER HERE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FHBTT FBT
Year ended 31 December & Z2018512H31H
2018 LLEE
Opening net debt FNEBFHE 373,831 11,000  (2,314,473)  (1,929,642)
Cash flows ReERE 14,618 83,654 (90,322) 7,950
Exchange differences =% (12,924) (3,351) 109,498 93,223
Closing net debt FEREBFHE 375,525 91,303  (2,295,297)  (1,828,469)
Year ended 31 December & Z2019%12H31H
2019 LLFE
Opening net debt ) & 15 % 5 375,525 91,303  (2,295.297)  (1,828,469)
Cash flows ReER= (19,007) 368,182 58,113 407,288
Exchange differences MEH Z%R (6,299) (8,491) 49,196 34,406
Closing net debt R E5 %R 350,219 450,994  (2,187,988)  (1,386,775)
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Five-year Financial Summary

> M2
hFEMBERRE
RESULTS E |
Year ended 31 December
BZ12RA3MALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20175 20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AT TET FTEL TET
(Restated)
(&)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (BE%) (&%) (BE%) (B&E%)
(i)
Revenue A 1,695,486 1,686,996 1,453,035 1,358,953 1,720,099
Profit for the year attributable to ~ AFEHEF|FBER
owners of the Company ARRAERBEEE 155,159 113,321 220,097 1,061,166 177,353
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
31 December
12A31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20165 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TEL TEL TET
(Restated)
(&3)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(RER) (&%) (&%) (&%) (B&E%)
(i)
Total assets BELR 4,905,875 4,969,091 5,074,820 6,093,268 6,721,257
Total liabilities BiERE (2,849,109) (3,027,908) (3,032,910)  (4,412,619)  (5,170,282)
2,056,766 1,941,183 2,041,910 1,680,649 1,550,975
(i) The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2015 (i) HZE2015F12A3MBILFEZHMBEERBENRBE
is restated using the principles of merger accounting, as BRI ESRAREZEHE RAES - BT
prescribed in HKAGS5. Details of which were disclosed in Note BERAEBMEE2016F12A31ALEEZREMH
2.1 of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for &R FE2. 15T -

the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Room 3403, 34th Floor,
China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEETEEIE265
FEBAE341E3403F

Tel E5E: (852) 2598 9088
Fax {£H: (852) 2598 9018

www.cecht.com.cn




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理人員簡歷
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務資料摘要
	封底

